
     

 
Notice of a public meeting of 

Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management 
Committee & Health and Adult Social Care Policy and Scrutiny 

Committee - Commissioned Joint Committee meeting 
 
To: Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Baker, S Barnes, 

Doughty, Fenton, Heaton, Hollyer, Hook, Musson, 
Norman, Pearson, Rowley, K Taylor, Vassie and Wann 
 

Date: Monday, 25 October 2021 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West 
Offices (F045) 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point, Members are asked to declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda 
 

2. Public Participation   
At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered to speak can do so.  Please note that our registration 
deadlines have changed to 2 working days before the meeting, 
in order to facilitate the management of public participation at 
our meetings. The deadline for registering is 5.00pm on 
Thursday 21 October 2021.  Members of the public can speak 
on agenda items or matters within the remit of the committee. 

 



 

 To register to speak please visit 
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online 
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration 
form or the meeting please contact the Democracy Officer for the 
meeting whose details can be found at the foot of the agenda. 
 
Webcasting of Public Meetings 
 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this public 
meeting will be webcast including any registered public speakers 
who have given their permission. The public meeting can be 
viewed on demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.  
 
During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're 
running council meetings. See our coronavirus updates 
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on 
meetings and decisions. 
 
 

3. City Centre, Vision, Accessibility and Traffic 
Regulation   

(Pages 3 - 84) 

 Committee Members are asked to specifically consider the 
recommendations in their area of expertise to Executive. 
 

4. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer 
 
Louise Cook 
 
Contact Details 
Telephone: (01904) 551088 
Email: democratic.servics@york.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy
mailto:democratic.servics@york.gov.uk


 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Coronavirus protocols for attending Committee Meetings at West 
Offices 

 
If you are attending a meeting in West Offices, you must observe the following 
protocols. 
 
Good ventilation is a key control point, therefore, all windows must remain open 
within the meeting room. 
 
If you’re displaying possible coronavirus symptoms (or anyone in your household is 
displaying symptoms), you should follow government guidance. You are advised not to 
attend your meeting at West Offices. 
 
Testing 
 
The Council encourages regular testing of all Officers and Members and also any members 
of the public in attendance at a Committee Meeting. Any members of the public attending a 
meeting are advised to take a test within 24 hours of attending a meeting, the result of the 
test should be negative, in order to attend. Test kits can be obtained by clicking on either 
link: Find where to get rapid lateral flow tests - NHS (testand-trace.nhs.uk), or, Order 
coronavirus (COVID-19) rapid lateral flow tests - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). Alternatively, if you 
call 119 between the hours of 7am and 11pm, you can order a testing kit over the telephone. 
 

Guidelines for attending Meetings at West Offices 
 Please do not arrive more than 10 minutes before the meeting is due to start. 

 You may wish to wear a face covering to help protect those also attending. 

 You should wear a face covering when entering West Offices. 

 Visitors to enter West Offices by the customer entrance and Officers/Councillors to 
enter using the staff entrance only. 

 Ensure your ID / visitors pass is clearly visible at all time. 

 Regular handwashing is recommended. 

 Use the touchless hand sanitiser units on entry and exit to the building and hand 
sanitiser within the Meeting room. 

 Bring your own drink if required. 

 Only use the designated toilets next to the Meeting room. 

 
Developing symptoms whilst in West Offices 
 
If you develop coronavirus symptoms during a Meeting, you should: 

 Make your way home immediately 

 Avoid the use of public transport where possible 

 Follow government guidance in relation to self-isolation.  
 
You should also: 
 

 Advise the Meeting organiser so they can arrange to assess and carry out additional 
cleaning 

 Do not remain in the building any longer than necessary 

 Do not visit any other areas of the building before you leave 
 
If you receive a positive test result, or if you develop any symptoms before the meeting is 
due to take place, you should not attend the meeting. 

Page 1 Agenda Annex

http://www.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

 

   

 
Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Management Committee and  
Health and Adult Social Care Policy and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

   

 25 October 2021  

Report of the Corporate Director of Place 
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Transport 
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Economy and Strategic Planning 
 
City Centre, Vision, Accessibility and Traffic Regulation 
 
Summary 
 
1. York city centre represents some of the most intensively used and 

highest valued land in the city. The intensity of use is not just in economic 
value but the extensive use by local residents and the city’s 7 million plus 
visitors per year. 
 

2. Covid restrictions, lockdowns and temporary regulatory changes have 
seen a rapid change in how the city centre is being used. These covid 
impacts have also accelerated at a national and local level the impacts of 
online retail and York is benefiting significantly from a rapid growth in the 
hotel and hospitality sector in one of the country’s most desirable 
staycation locations. 
 

3. These covid restrictions and the changing nature of the city centre 
economy have led the Council’s Executive to support the economy, 
residents and visitors by changing the use of the city’s highways with 
temporary arrangements for the regulation of traffic in the city centre to 
facilitate greater social distancing and car free access to the city centre 
streets.  
 

4. In light of the above at the meeting on November 18 the Executive will 
consider a suite of reports that cover the future vision of the city centre 
and ongoing accessibility and regulation of vehicles for the city centre. In 
order to make this decision the Executive will need to consider the 
balancing of the competing uses of the city centre to deliver a safe and 
inclusive space recognising the complex compromises that will need to 
be considered when meeting the Council’s duties under Equalities, 
Human Rights and Care Act legislation, to the whole community including 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



Blue Badge Holders who in particular have been impacted by the 
temporary measures. 
 

Recommendations 
 

5. In light of the Health and Adult Social Care Policy and Scrutiny specialist 
area of focus, the committee is asked to consider the attached detailed 
report and specifically consider recommendations in the Committee’s 
area of expertise to Executive as to the issues and a balance that should 
be brought to consideration in their decision making in respect of the 
Council’s duties under the Equalities Act, Human Rights Act and Care 
Act legislation. 
 
Reason: To ensure that Executive have fully considered all the impacts 
of the vision, access and vehicle regulation decisions that they are going 
to be asked to consider at the 18 November Executive. 

 
Consultation 
 
6.  A series of consultation including a statutory Traffic Regulation Order 

consultation have been undertaken and these are considered in the 
detailed report which is an annex to this report.  

 
Options  
 
7. It is a matter for the Health and Adult Social Care Policy and Scrutiny 

Committee to determine if it wishes to make recommendations to the 
Executive. 

 
Council Plan 
 
8. The information and issues included in this report demonstrate progress 

on achieving the priorities set out in the Council Plan. 
 
Implications 
 
9. There are no implications from this report as Scrutiny are making 

advisory recommendations to Executive as the decision making body.  
 
Risk Management 
 
10. Scrutiny’s consideration of the all the factors relevant to the Executive on 

the 18 November helps ensure fully informed decision making. 
 
 

Page 4



 
 
Contact Details 
 
Authors: Chief Officer 

Responsible for the report: 
Neil Ferris 
Corporate Director of Place 
neil.ferris@york.gov.uk  
 

Neil Ferris 
Corporate Director of Place 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 14.10.21 

 

Wards Affected: All  

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
 

Attached Reports 
 

1. Detailed report for City Centre, Vision, accessibility and Traffic 
regulation 
 

2. Human Rights Commission report (link below) 
      Blue Badge Access to York City Centre 2021 - York Human Rights City 
 

Page 5

mailto:neil.ferris@york.gov.uk
https://www.yorkhumanrights.org/blue-badge-access/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 
 

   

 
Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Management Committee  
 

   

 25 October 2021  

Report of the Corporate Director of Place 
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Transport 
 
City Centre, Vision, Accessibility and Traffic Regulation  
 
Summary 
 
1. At the meeting on November 18 Executive will consider a suite of reports 

that cover the future vision of the city centre and ongoing accessibility 
and regulation of vehicles for the city centre. Reports for this decision 
session are in development and non-statutory consultation is still 
ongoing and due to conclude on 25 October 2021. 

 
2. This report elaborates on: 
 

 The Council’s emergency response to Covid 

 The Council’s Equality Duties 

 The context of the four reports that Executive are going to 
consider,  

 The structure of the work and consultations undertaken to date 

 Emerging recommendations 

 Emerging content of reports 

 The latest context as to the city centre recovery 

 The work undertaken to review Hostile Vehicle Mitigation 
measures 

 
3. None of the Executive reports are complete and a significant amount of 

analysis in particular of consultation response and impacts is being 
undertaken therefore further work is ongoing in preparing the reports for 
Executive. This work includes detailed legal advice as to the Council’s 
Duties and the degree to which the Executive is in a position to consider 
making a decision. 

 
4. The Scrutiny process will offer an opportunity for Members to consider 

the key aspects of all four reports and the complex balances and 
obligations that the Executive are going to have to consider.  This will 

Page 7



further inform the reports for Executive and recommendations can of 
course be made directly to Executive by each Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Background 
 
Pre Covid City 
 
5. York’s city centre has undergone many incarnations over the centuries. 

Cars are however a 20th Century phenomena and they can be seen 
filling the city centre in photographs of the 1950’s and 1970’s as the car 
became more prevalent.  As the city centre has evolved the Council has 
taken responsibility for regulating this vehicular access to meet the 
evolving needs of the city over time. As the most valuable and intensely 
used land in the city this has always necessitated compromise and as 
recently reported in the Press often not without controversy, with Market 
Traders and Police involved in demonstrations in 1986 over the 
introduction of footstreets. 
 

6. York’s current permanent footstreet areas were introduced in the 1980s. 
Traditionally the footstreet hours have run from 10.30am to 5pm, 
although in recent years the hours have been extended on a temporary 
basis until 6pm Sunday – Wednesday and 8:00pm Thursday – Saturday 
during the festive period to accommodate the large numbers of people 
visiting the city at that time.   
 

Ongoing Threats 
 
7. Today York is one of the most visited places in the UK with over 7 million 

visitors and each year hosts a number of events and festivals that attract 
a growing number of people both locally and from across the world into 
the city for the benefit of its economy, jobs and residents. In addition the 
desirability of the city as a place to live, raise children and grow old is 
well documented. These factors of success are however vulnerable and 
precious and easily lost as they rely heavily on society’s perceptions of 
the safety offered by a major Tourism city such as York. York can also 
boast one of the nation’s most iconic sites in its boundaries, York 
Minster. 

 
8. The Executive in February 2018 noted the changes above and 

recognised that keeping the residents and visitors safe by protecting the 
public and the economy of York is a key role and priority for the Council, 
noting that the consequences of an attack on the city would be severe. In 
light of the above and following the use of an Experimental order and a 
series of statutory and non-statutory consultations the Executive 
restricted vehicular access in the city centre and reduced the number of 
streets which Blue Badge Holders vehicles could access. 

 

Page 8



9. Unfortunately the terrorist threat has not subsided and the Government 
have recently consulted on proposals for Local Councils to have a “Duty 
to Protect” which will have wide reaching implications with regard the 
obligations on local Councils to respond to Counter Terrorism advice. 

 
Changing City 
 
10. The city centre has also continued to evolve since 2018 and, whilst the 

city continued to outperform other Cities in respect of retail decline 
thanks to our diverse independent trade offer, visitor economy and 
vibrant hospitality sector, the city has seen many national retailers 
collapsing, leaving large vacancies on Coney Street, Parliament Street 
and across the city centre.  
 

11. Recognising the changing nature of the city centre and the slow but 
constant decline of high street retail, the My City Centre project was 
commissioned by Executive in August 2019, with the aim: 
 
“To engage the public and stakeholders to develop a long term social, 
environmental and economic strategic vision for a sustainable future for 
York city centre” 
 

12. Before the My City Centre project could get into full consultation and 
reporting on 23 March 2020 the country was closed down due to Covid 
and the national timeline over the following year is shown below. 

 

Page 9



 
 
 
 
Covid Response 
 
13. Covid necessitated the implementation of a number of significant 

emergency measures in the city centre that were set out in the One Year 
Transport and Place Strategy, which was approved by the council’s 
Executive in June 2020. The strategy was a direct response to the 
government’s Safer Public Places guidance, which was issued in May 
2020 in preparation for the reopening of city centres, and aimed to create 
sufficient space for safe social distancing, queueing, and businesses to 
safely reopen and operate. The Council’s Transport and Place Strategy 
focused on five key strands: 
 

o Creating a people focused city centre  
 

o Prioritising active transport  
 

o Promoting a complimentary park > walk > visit strategy using 
council car parks outside the people focused city centre 

 
o Maintaining confidence in public transport  

 

Page 10



o Supporting the city’s secondary centres  
 

The strategy had to consider and balance a significant number of issues - 
with public health being the absolute priority, and Government changes 
in the Business and Planning Act to licensing laws and pavement café 
licence to make it easier for business to have outdoor seating through the 
introduction of a fixed fee of £100, removal of the requirement for 
planning permission, and requiring authorities to determine applications 
within 5 working days.   
 
Figure 1 – safely re-opening the city centre following lockdown 

 
14. As part of this strategy the city’s response to meet these challenges 

included an amendment to the existing footstreets to remove vehicular 
access to create the additional safe space set out in government 
guidance. This was implemented through the following timeline of actions 
and decisions:  

 
 Timeline of decisions 
 

June 2020 – Temporary removal of the Blue Badge access exemption in the 
footstreets in response to Covid 19 under emergency powers 
(https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=5829) 
 
July 2020 – Extension of footstreet hours to 8pm and introduction of additional 
mitigations to reduce the impact of the temporary changes on Blue Badge holders 
(https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=5853) 
 
September 2020 – Extensive public engagement on the impacts of the extended 
footstreets 
 
November 2020 – Executive  
 
Issue - items at meetings - The future of the extended city centre footstreets 
(york.gov.uk) 

Page 11

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=61098&Opt=3
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=61098&Opt=3


 
• Approved new blue badge parking spaces on the edge of the footstreets 
 
• Reinstated motorised vehicle access to Monkgate, Deangate and College 

Green to increase blue badge parking. 
 
• Approved the statutory consultation to consider making the temporary 

changes to the remaining footstreets permanent. 
 
• Commissioned a Strategic Review of City Centre Access and Parking to 

makes recommendations on improving access for disabled users, deliveries, 
cyclists and residents 

 
Consideration of making the temporary footstreets permanent 
following November 2020 Exec 
 
November 2020 – Executive decision to begin the formal process to consider 
making the temporary changes permanent (except Fossgate, Monkgate, 
Deangate, College Green) based on the outcome of September 2020 public 
engagement and Equalities Impact Assessment  
 
February 2021 – statutory consultation delayed as officers identified further 
improvements to blue badge parking 
 
Spring 2021 – public engagement on further blue badge improvements to mitigate 
impact of the proposed changes in the footstreets 
 
July/August 2021 – Statutory consultation launched  
Issue - items at meetings - Footstreets Traffic Regulation Order Proposals 
(york.gov.uk)  

 

The parking mitigation measures that were associated with these 
decisions and current status is included at Annex 1. 

 
Next Steps Reports to Executive November 2021 
 
15. In response to the above issues officers are bringing a suite of 

interrelated reports to the Executive in November 2021 for consideration. 
In order to aid the Scrutiny of the City Centre Regulation highlights of the 
reports and draft working recommendations are as follows, with the 
forward plan entries being detailed at Annex 2. 

 
a. My City Centre: Approve the My City Centre Strategic Vision and 

adopt as a guide to investment in the centre, and consideration of 
relevant changes to planning policy to compliment the Vision 
 (where relevant). 
 
Reason: To establish a long term social, environmental and 
economic strategic vision for a sustainable future for York city 
centre, and ensure that decisions are made in accordance with 
this vision. 

Page 12

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=63427&Opt=3
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=63427&Opt=3


 
b. City Centre Access: Approve the Strategic Review of City Centre 

Access and associated Action Plan. 
 
Reason: To agree a clear strategy for access to and through the 
city centre footstreets and approve the action plan to implement 
the improvements to access that have been developed through 
public and stakeholder engagement. 
 

c. Consideration of changes to the City Centre Traffic regulation 
order: To note the consultation responses to the statutory 
consultation as detailed in paragraphs X, this will help the 
Executive to understand the impacts reported by the Blue Badge 
holder and disabled community, whilst also considering the risks 
of pedestrian and vehicle conflict, and the impact of changing the 
TRO on implementing the counter terrorism measures that 
Executive have previously approved. 

 
 Reason: To ensure Executive considers the Council’s equalities 

duties and the wider context of this decision and the additional 
information that has been provided as a result of the wider 
consultations with residents, businesses and stakeholders on the 
future of the City Centre. 

 
In light of the above considerations and specifically the Council’s 
equalities duties, Executive are asked to determine if they wish to 
proceed with Option x,y,z etc 
 

d. Dial a Ride: To consider arrangements for the Council’s financial 
relationship with York Wheels service and potential additional 
service investment in Dial & Ride. 
 
Reason: To regularise the Council’s arrangements with York 
Wheels providing greater clarity of roles and responsibilities, whilst 
considering opportunities to enhance the service for users in 
particular city centre accessibility.  
 

16. Each of these reports are separate decisions but the sequencing   will 
allow Executive to consider the impacts and necessity of their decisions 
when considering the subsequent report and thereby better inform the 
decision making process. 

 
Engagement and Consultation approach 

 
17. The development of these reports has taken into consideration the 

extensive consultation that has and is taking place over the last year and 

Page 13



the following is a summary of the key elements of the process and 
feedback: 

 
 The city centre reopening following COVID-19 prompted the most 

extensive engagement with disabled residents and review of access to 
York’s city centre in living memory. Ideally, the engagement would have 
taken place prior to the development of the One Year Transport and 
Place strategy, but the timescales between receiving government 
regulations and guidance left no room for any meaningful engagement or 
co-design ahead of the implementation. The engagement that followed 
was therefore designed to make sure the Council truly understood the 
impact of its decisions, both positive and negative, and inform potential 
solutions to barriers to access. Ultimately, the engagement provides 
Executive with a detailed evidence base on which to consider 
recommendations for the future arrangements and access 
accommodations.  

 
The ongoing conversation regarding the extent of the Footstreets can be 
considered in three distinct phases: 

 
1. Capturing the impact of the emergency measures introduced 

for Covid reopening and informing changes made in November 

Executive. 

This engagement phase included two surveys available online and 
through consecutive issues of the Council’s magazine, Our City. 
Coupled with a freepost address for return, the first survey was an 
all-resident pulse survey containing several questions relating to the 
reopening’s. The second survey was targeted specifically at blue 
badge holders.  

 

Those 165 respondents identifying as disabled expressed broadly 
the same levels of support as the wider population for the principles 
behind the extended pedestrianisation. 61% of disabled respondents 
agreed or strongly agreed with extending the footstreets, compared 
with 67% across the whole survey. On prioritising extra space for 
cafes and restaurants, the ‘agree’ and ‘strongly agree’ figures are 
70.8% for the whole survey, and 70.3% for those identifying as 
disabled. 

 
In the follow-up up survey targeting disabled residents in 
September’s Our City, twice as many respondents (168) agreed 
rather than disagreed (81) that extra room increased their safety,  
while more (151) agreed that fewer vehicles increases their safety 
than disagreed (115). The 177 Blue Badge Holders were less 
positive in their responses, with 45% disagreeing or strongly 
disagreeing that fewer vehicles increase their safety. Respondents 

Page 14



noted that the parking provision and mitigation is not seen as 
adequate, (201) or close enough (213). The result is that 62% of 
those who responded to the question (198 of 318) believed the 
footstreets extension made them less or far less likely to visit the city 
centre. 

 
 The surveys were complemented by workshops, co-facilitated by the 

York Disability Rights Forum and attended by 30 individuals. We 
also held targeted meetings and insight meetings with disabled 
groups with a combined membership/representing several 
thousands of York’s residents. Forum members offered feedback 
and guidance on inclusive engagement practice and also signed off 
the community brief published to capture all the themes raised within 
the engagement. This working relationship has supported increased 
accessibility of the engagement process, including the use of British 
Sign Language translators, Easy Read versions of some key 
documents, more accessible structures and consultation material 
within workshops, and a lived experience focus for the accessible 
routes workshops held by external consultants.  

 

 While the footstreets have advantages from an accessibility and – at 
the time a key concern – public health perspective, a number of 
disabled residents feel the removal of blue badge parking makes the 
city centre less accessible, or indeed completely inaccessible, to 
them.  

 

 While the community brief focuses on restrictions and accompanying 
accommodations which were removed following November 2020’s 
Executive, it captures and reflects the impacts felt by those Blue 
Badge Holders while also reflecting the increased accessibility and 
sense of safety of pedestrianisation of the wide road surfaces. The 
advantages are caveated by the need to improve accessibility in 
other key areas, such as navigation around new street furniture and 
access to pavements and units through improved dropped kerbs and 
pavement surfaces.  

 
 Overall the removal of the Blue Badge access exemption and longer 

hours were welcomed by most businesses, with many identifying 
them as essential to keep trading, and were supported by York 
Retail Forum and the York BiD on behalf of their members. 
However, there were some notable exceptions, particularly retail and 
service businesses who rely on frequent deliveries throughout the 
day and some hospitality venues that had adapted to lockdown and 
were providing food takeaway deliveries by vehicles. 

 
The recommendations to November 2020 Executive reflected the 
extensive and diverse nature of the opinions captured. The 

Page 15



engagement and community brief informed changes made to the 
temporary order, including the removal of the temporary access 
restrictions on Deangate and College Green. It also directly informed 
a programme of work and further engagement to place disabled 
residents’ views at the heart of plans to shape a more accessible city 
centre.  

 

2. Pre Consultations ahead of Statutory traffic regulation order 

consultation 

 There have been two periods of consultation relating directly to the 
future decision in November relating to the footstreets traffic 
regulation orders. In Spring 2021, the council held two online 
workshops, again backed up by a survey available online, as well as 
being posted to several individuals by request.  The consultation 
explored the value of specific locations where additional blue badge 
parking could be provided on the edge of the footstreets, and the 
nature of that parking.  

 
 In total there were 540 survey responses completed, of the 

completed surveys 270 were completed by Residents who are Blue 
Badge holders, 65 by residents who are not Blue Badge Holders, 69 
by a carer of a Blue Badge Holder, 7 from businesses (including taxi 
drivers) and 129 skipped the question. Transport officers also 
considered the 12 emails received in response to the consultation, 
and the views of 20 people attending the two open invitation zoom 
sessions.  

 
 Workshop participants and many survey respondents repeated the 

desire for a return to pre-COVID access arrangements and the harm 
that removing exemptions would cause. The consultation also 
revealed that many of the new disabled bay locations would be 
welcomed and useful to some people in some situations, including 
access to services, shops and cultural activities close to proposed 
new bays.  

 
3. Statutory Consultation on Extent of Footstreets 

 
 This was followed by a statutory consultation on the removal of the 

blue badge exemption on several streets to confirm the current 
arrangements for the long term. Again, every Blue Badge Holder in 
York received details of the proposals and information on how to 
make a representation. The results of this will be shared ahead of 
the Executive decision in November.   

  
4. Strategic Review of City Centre Access and Vision 

 

Page 16



The ongoing conversation regarding the accessibility and vision of 

the city centre has also undertaken significant consultations 

 Part 1 – shaping the strategic review 
 A summer of engagement activity centred on the future of the city 

centre, both from a wider vision perspective (the My City Centre 
programme) and the strategic review of city centre access was 
agreed by Executive in November 2020.  

 
 1,346 people responded to the My City Centre resident survey, 

which was advertised online and in the council publication Our City, 
delivered to every household in York. A section of all three versions 
of the My City Centre survey focused on access to York city centre, 
with people identifying as disabled routed to these questions. 16% of 
respondents consider themselves to have a disability. 70 
respondents said they had a blue badge, or 41% of those who said 
they had a disability (169 respondents).  

 
 The results from this consultation reinforced the conclusions which 

informed the Strategic Review’s focal points, including: 
 

 Quality of pavements ranks highly in disabled access priorities, 
but scores poorly when rating the city’s current provisions 

 Overall, the bus is the number one method of transport into the 
city centre for those that responded.  

 For those who drive, a car park’s proximity to a desired location is 
the most important consideration for our residents 

 Multi-storey car parks remain unpopular due to unreliability of lifts 

 Awareness and demand for Shopmobility both scored poorly.  
 

We also held the following workshops to look at different aspects of 
access identified in Summer 2020’s Open Brief, collectively 
attracting over 100 attendees (although many of these were 
individuals attending multiple workshops).   
 
- York City Centre Deliveries Focus Group took place on 20 May 

with cycle couriers, delivery drivers and the businesses that 
depend on them.   

- 2 x Accessible Routes in York City Centre Workshops took place 
on 11 and 16 June with users with specialist mobility 
requirements.   

- 2 x Cycling in York City Centre Workshops took place on 11 and 
17 June with cyclists and potential cyclists.   

- A York Shop mobility Focus Group took place on 14 June with 
users and potential users of the service.   

- A meeting with York Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 
Associations took place on 2 June 

Page 17



 
The minutes of each of these workshops were shared with 
participants to check for accuracy before being published on the 
Council’s website. They can viewed, along with a wider summary of 
the emerging themes and further questions as part of the latest City 
Centre Access engagement at www.york.gov.uk/AccessConsultation  

   
Part 2 testing the vision and exploring further questions 
  

 We have recently shared both the draft My City Centre vision 
and the emerging ideas and key questions relating to the 
strategic review of City Centre Access.  
- The My City Centre survey revealed wider resident sentiment 

relating to a number of areas with direct implications for the 
footstreets and city centre management, including: 
 

Improve accessibility through a wide range of further measures 
including more dropped kerbs, improved surfaces and seating 
and better facilities for disabled people. 
- Almost 9 out of 10 residents agree with this statement, while the 

majority, 57%, strongly agree 
- Residents most likely to say they strongly agree are those who 

look after someone with a condition or problems related to old 
age (77%), residents with a physical or mental health condition 
(70%), and females (77%).  

 
 Support outdoor eating and cafe culture in the city centre. 

- Around 4 in 5 residents agree with this statement, while 45% 
strongly agree 

- Over 60s are least likely to say they strongly agree (only 34% 
strongly agree vs. 53% aged 16-39) 

- While outdoor seating has been a popular response to the 
Covid pandemic, outdoor café culture should only occur where 
there is enough space, i.e. not block pavements or accessible 
routes. 
  

Create a family friendly environment in the early evening, 
particularly midweek. 
- Just over two thirds of residents agree with this statement, with 

almost a third saying they strongly agree 
- Agreement is similar across demographics  
- The majority of comments were around creating a family friendly 

environment at weekends too, as this is more likely to be family 
time, outside of work and school commitments. 
 

Page 18

http://www.york.gov.uk/AccessConsultation


 Supporting businesses and family-friendly activity in the early 
evening 
- 4 in 5 residents agree with this statement, while over one third 

strongly agree 
- Agreement is similar across demographics  
- The highest number of comments were around the difficulty of 

York being family-friendly in the evenings due to the amount of 
drunken behaviour 

 
 At the time of writing, we have not completed the analysis of the 

views of the 23% of the disabled residents or carers who are part of 
the 909 online responses. 

 

Draft Report Content 
 
My City Centre and the future vision for York 
 
18. The My City Centre vision has been shaped through extensive 

stakeholder and public engagement and establishes a long term vision 
for the social, economic and environmental sustainability of the city 
centre, underpinning jobs, services and our economy. The core premise 
is that a vibrant city centre, which a wide range of people want to spend 
time in across the day and evening, will create the right conditions for 
responsive businesses to grow and adapt, for city living to develop, and 
for cultural and social activity to flourish. York is an amazing place that 
people want to visit, and tourism is a key component of our economy. But 
first and foremost our city centre exists to serve the needs of our 
residents. By focusing our vision on ensuring the city centre is in the best 
place it can be for our residents and communities that live here, the 
visitors that support the economy and sustain our shops, markets, 
restaurant and jobs that are used by our residents, will follow. 

 
19. The My City Centre Vision will create the environment for all of this to 

happen through:  
 

 Creating a supportive, place specific policy & regulatory 
framework  

  Seeking investment for our public realm and spaces  

 Ensuring events & experiences attract a wide range of people  

 Providing more for residents and families  

 Encouraging people into the city when it was traditionally quieter  

 Ensuring a safe, happy environment when it is busier 
 

20. This draft vision was tested with the public in September 2021 as noted 
above in the consultation summary.  There are a number of long term 
aspirations for the city centre in the vision that relate to the operation of 

Page 19



the footstreets, particularly the ambition for continued outdoor seating 
and a café culture to drive a family friendly city centre, events spread 
more widely across the city’s squares and streets, and the footstreets 
running later in to the evening. These have all received positive feedback 
from the key stakeholders on the My City Centre steering group and had 
high approval ratings in the public feedback on the vision. 

 
City Centre Access 

 
21. In November 2020, Executive commissioned officers to undertake a 

strategic review of the city centre access and parking, to be completed by 
summer 2021. The review was commissioned at the same time as the 
Executive’s decision to commence the statutory consultation on 
extending the geography of the pedestrianised footstreet area in line with 
the temporary measures introduced in response to Covid.  

22. The main purpose of the access element of the review was to explore 
through public and stakeholder engagement how access could be 
improved to and through the footstreets - regardless of their geographical 
extent – with a particular focus on disabled people, cycling and e-
scooters, deliveries, taxis and residents who live within the footstreets. 

23. The review followed the council’s ‘My’ approach to public engagement 
that has been successfully pioneered on other projects and issues in the 
city. This involved placing the public and stakeholders at the heart of 
understanding and defining the challenges, producing an open brief, 
establishing a draft vision, and then testing and refining that vision 
through further engagement.  

24. During the engagement period the council ran and facilitated online 
workshops and events which are detailed above in the consultation 
summary. 

25. All of these events went in to producing an open brief on the issues 
raised, capturing the wide range of views and feedback that were 
received. The final engagement on the draft recommendations is 
ongoing. 

26. The guiding principle developed through the review is a city centre 
access model based on three key principles – that the footstreets is an 
area in which people can walk or use mobility aids; that cyclist, e-
scooters, buses and blue badge holders are encouraged to be within the 
city centre but to pass around or park on the edge of the footstreets; and 
cars and vehicles are encouraged where possible to park outside the 
inner ring road.  

27. The elements that make up the vision are currently being tested through 
public engagement which runs until the 25th October. The issues that are 

Page 20



being tested through that engagement, to allow the final strategic review 
recommendations to be tested, are as follows: 

 whether the footstreet hours should run until 7pm in the evening 

 whether the footstreet hours should start at 12 noon to during 
weekdays in the less busy period of the year to allow longer period 
of access for blue badge holders 

 creating further disabled bays in Duncombe Place/Blake Street 

 investing in the shopmobility and dial-a-ride service, identifying users 
and additional locations, and the intention to expanded provision of 
mobility aids 

 a feasibility study for a dedicated shuttle service for disabled people 
and those with mobility issues 

 providing additional seating at key points across the city centre, 
improving the availability and quality of disabled toilets, and 
improving poor quality pavements 

 the aim for all city centre business deliveries being undertaken by 
ultra-low emission vehicles or cargo bikes by 2030 

 In principle cycling should not be permitted in the footstreets 

 But whether there should be exemptions for people who use a cycle 
as a mobility aid or for cycle couriers  

 improving existing city centre cycle routes, and investing in more 
secure cycle parking spaces 

The response to this engagement will be reported to November 
Executive alongside the final strategy. 

Changes to City Centre Traffic Regulation Order 

28. The Council’s response to the Covid-19 restrictions and social distancing 
requirements to help aid the economic recovery of the city removed the 
exemption for vehicles displaying a Blue Badge to access the pedestrian 
area during the times of operation and extended the hours of operation 
till 8pm all week on a temporary basis. 
 

29. To help mitigate the removal of the exemption on vehicles displaying a 
Blue Badge, Blue Badge parking bays were introduced at the outskirts of 
the pedestrian area. 
 

30. The conflict between pedestrians and vehicle movements on some of the 
footstreets has been an ongoing concern for a number of years leading 
to the core vehicle free area being extended and protected with 
removable bollards. Improvements to signs and the highway layout have 
also been introduced to reduce the number of vehicles entering the high 
pedestrian flow streets. 
 

Page 21



31. The extent of the footstreet areas has been subject to ongoing 
discussions for a number of years as part of the City Centre Access 
project in response to the threat of terrorism, and particularly the use of 
hostile vehicles as a potential mode of attack. This had led to the 
approval of a first phase of anti-hostile vehicle measures for the core 
footstreet area, but with potential future phases to expand the area of 
protection. 
 

32. The Executive decided to start the process of making some of the 
temporary Covid related changes permanent in November 2020. The 
decision to undertake the statutory consultation to remove the Blue 
Badge access exemption and introduce dedicated Blue Badge bays on 
the outskirts of the pedestrian area was taken in June 2021.  

 
TRO Consultation  
 

33. The statutory consultation for the amendment of the TRO was advertised 
on 9th July 2021, with an original end date of 6th August 2021, which was 
extended until 13th August 2021.  The statutory consultation for the 
proposed amendments to the TRO was advertised to amend The York 
Parking, Stopping and Waiting Traffic Order 2014 and The York Traffic 
Management Order 2014.  
 

34. The York Parking, Stopping and Waiting Traffic Order 2014 was 
proposed to be amended to introduce: 
 

i) Dedicated Blue Badge parking bays on Carmelite Street, Deangate, 
Duncombe Place, Dundas Street, St Andrewgate and St Saviourgate; 

ii) shared Blue Badge Parking/loading bay on Duncombe Place and; 
iii) No Loading’ at any time restriction on Aldwark. 
 

35. The York Traffic Management Order 2014 was proposed to be amended 
to revoke the exemption on vehicles displaying a Blue Badge from 
accessing Blake Street, Castlegate, Church Street, Colliergate, 
Goodramgate between Deangate and Church Street, King’s Square, 
Lendal, St Andrewgate between its junction with King’s Square and a 
point 50 metres north east and St Helen’s Square during the pedestrian 
hours (10.30am and 5.00pm). 
 

36. With over 200 responses to the consultation, detailed analysis is being 
undertaken with nearly all respondents detailing their objections to the 
proposals. 

 

Dial & Ride 

37. Local community transport provider York Wheels has, for many years, 
operated the council’s Dial & Ride service under a service level 

Page 22



agreement. As a York-based not-for-profit charity, with a high level of 
volunteer support, York Wheels are ideally placed to operate the service 
in a manner which, in comparison to alternatives, offers excellent value 
for money for the council and have a high level of understanding of local 
needs to travel through extensive links with the local community. 

38. Prior to the Covid outbreak in March 2020, approximately 5,000 return 
journeys per year were made on Dial & Ride services, with around 500 
users of the service in total of which around 200 are regular users 
travelling at least twice per month. 

39. The report will consider this year’s additional budget allocation to Dial & 
Ride and in particular the City Centre Services provided as the uniquely 
identifiable dial and ride bus has an exemption to the City Centre 
footstreets. 

Current Economic Performance 

40. As can be seen in Annex 3, the city centre is performing well, with 
footfall and spend both strong over the past quarter.  There are plenty of 
customers for businesses, with that picture extending beyond the school 
holiday period and into early October.  We have also heard from out-of-
town locations that trading is strong in York in contrast to other locations, 
with the average high street footfall across the country being around 18% 
below what was seen in 2019. 

41. Investor interest in York continues, both in terms of commercial property 
investment, and in acquisitions and expansions.  The recent months 
have seen 20 recorded sales of such property, including two large hotels 
(Dean Court and Monk Bar), three offices and a dozen retail sites.   
 

Terrorism and Highway Safety Risks from Vehicular access 
 
42. Annex 4 is a map showing the Existing Extent of Footstreets in the City 

Centre.  Annex 5 is a map that shows the footstreets, those marked blue 
have been car free.  Those marked green had a specific exemption 
allowing blue badge holder, which was temporarily removed.  If it is made 
permanent then the Hostile Vehicle Mitigations approved by the 
Executive will be reviewed.  The current proposed extent of footstreets 
protected by the Hostile Vehicle Mitigation Measures is shown in Annex 
6.  Annex 7 shows the extent possible if the car free element of the 
footstreets is extended. 
 

43. In addition to the response to the Statutory Consultation response 
Officers are currently consulting with the Police as to their advice to 
Executive in respect of the current vehicle terrorism risks, noting that they 
have a power to request and CYC an obligation to implement an anti-
terrorism traffic regulation order. In considering this matter Highways 

Page 23



officers have also been considering the HVM options implications of 
allowing vehicular access for parking on either the Goodramgate – King’s 
Square – Colliergate corridor, or the Blake Street – St Helen’s Square – 
Lendal corridor. 

 
44. The 2018 Phase One HVM scheme is designed with both of these 

corridors being accessible but only protects the Parliament Street/St 
Sampson’s Square events space and Coney Street. There would be no 
protection for King’s Square, St Helen’s Square, the market and busy 
surrounding streets.  Whilst specific vehicles may be the primary 
exemption to the restrictions, experience shows that the open access is 
exploited by many other drivers increasing the risks to pedestrian safety, 
including terrorist threat, whilst reducing pedestrian comfort.  The cost of 
the Phase One installation is estimated to be similar to the installation of 
the Phase Three scheme currently being designed. However, this review 
considers the increased responsibility the Duty to Protect will put on the 
Council, particularly the protection of crowded spaces in the city centre.   

 
45. If the Goodramgate – King’s Square – Colliergate corridor is open for 

vehicles, the cost of protecting King’s Square and the market as well as 
Petergate, Stonegate, Swinegate, and Church Street will require an 
additional £XXXK.  This is based on the access control points moving 
from Goodramgate and Colliergate to Low Petergate and Church Street, 
close to King’s Square.  An additional controlled access point will be 
necessary to allow access to King’s Square (to set up stalls, the carousel 
etc., and as an exit from the market and The Shambles).  Approximately 
30 bollards would be required to protect the Square. 

 
46. If the Blake Street – St Helen’s Square – Lendal corridor is open for 

vehicular access, the cost of protecting St Helen’s  Square and 
Stonegate (and therefore areas that could be accessed via Stonegate) 
will be an additional £XXXK This is based on access control points 
moving from Blake Street and Lendal to Davygate and Coney Street/St 
Helen’s Square.  To protect St Helen’s Square a line from the Mansion 
House/Guildhall access would be most effective, this was the line used in 
the 2019 festive period.  This will maximise protection of crowds 
associated with events based at the Mansion House (civic events, royal 
visits, political rallies) though crowds would inevitably spread beyond any 
bollard line as the event focus is generally the Mansion House front 
door.  An additional access control point will be necessary in Stonegate, 
at a point away from the junction for access by larger turning 
vehicles.  Approximately 32 bollards would be required to protect the 
Square. 

 
47. Highways officers have also considered the wider implications of allowing 

vehicle access for parking on either Goodramgate – King’s Square – 
Colliergate, or Blake Street – St Helen’s Square – Lendal. 

Page 24



 
48. Pavement Cafes Licences – The following is based on the current 

pavement café licences that are in operation under the temporary 
legislation. This number may reduce naturally once the temporary 
legislation ends and the previous legislation is reinstated (higher cost, 
requires more rigorous approval process) 

 
Blake Street – St Helen’s Square – Lendal: 

- 8 pavement café licences may have to be removed completely 
o Blake Street - McDonalds, The Larder Club 
o Lendal - 23 Lendal, Middle Feast, Nola, Spring 

Espresso, The Old Bank, Trembling Madness 
- 3 whose extent may have to decrease 

o Blake Street =1 (Mannion) 
o St Helen’s = 2 (Impossible, Harkers) 

 
 Realistic capacity of Blue Badge parking – 18 spaces maximum 
 

Goodramgate – King’s Square - Colliergate (excluding Church 
Street) 

- 9 pavement café licences that may have to be removed 
completely 

o  Goodramgate: Odin’s Plate/The Hilt, Old White Swan, 
Snickleway Inn, The Block, The Habit, Vahe Bar, 
Coffee Culture, Happy Valley 

o  Colliergate: Hop O’Clock 
 

- 5  whose extent may have to decrease/location change 
o  Kings Square: Thomas the Baker, Café Harlequin, 

Caffe Nero 
o  Colliergate: Chloe’s of York, the Cornish Bakery 

 
 

Council’s Equalities Duties 
 

49. In preparing and determining proposals set out in the report the Council 
will be required to have regard to the Equality Act 2010 and Human 
Rights Act 1998. The Council’s legal team are considering equality duty 
in depth.  Additionally, given the sensitive nature of the proposals in the 
report, external legal advice is being sought. 
 

50. The Council must in the exercise of its functions have due regard to the 
need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
prohibited conduct; advance equality of opportunity between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it and foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. Statutory 

Page 25



guidance issued in May 2020 reiterates that the duty continues to apply 
as Councils make changes (permanent and temporary) to their road 
networks in response to Covid-19, and the needs of disabled people and 
those with other protected characteristics must be considered.  A fair and 
proportionate balance has to be found between the needs of people with 
protected characteristics and the interests of the community as a whole 
to ensure that the equality duty is met.  
 

51. There is no prescriptive way to evidence due regard to those with 
protected characteristics under the Equalities Act.   
 

Recommendations 
 
52. Recommendations are contained in the covering report.  
 
Council Plan 
 
53. The information and issues included in this report demonstrate progress 

on achieving the priorities set out in the Council Plan. 
 
Implications 
 
54. As this is a Scrutiny report there is no decisions proposed however it is 

recognised there will be a number of significant implications that will 
need to be addressed in the final reports to Executive.  

 
 Financial are contained throughout the main body of the report. 
 Human Resources (HR) There are no HR implications related to 

the recommendations 
 One Planet Council / Equalities Whilst there are no specific 

implications within this report, services undertaken by the council 
make due consideration of these implications as a matter of 
course. 

 Legal The Council, as Highway Authority and Local Traffic 
Authority is responsible for making Traffic Regulation Orders 
(TRO). When making a TRO the authority must exercise its power 
in a way which secures the expeditious, convenient and safe 
movement of vehicular and other traffic and the provision of 
suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway so 
far as practicable. 

 
 Where works involve a need to introduce or amend a Traffic 

Regulation Order, the relevant statutory procedures must be 
followed including the requirement for formal consultation and 
advertisement in the local press.  Where objections are received, 
there is a duty on the Council to ensure that these objections are 
duly considered.  

Page 26



 Crime and Disorder There are no crime and disorder implications 
related to the recommendations 

 Information Technology (IT) There are no IT implications related 
to the recommendations 

 Property There are no property implications related to the 
recommendations 

 Other There are no other implications related to the 
recommendations 

 
Contact Details 

 
Authors: 
Neil Ferris 

Chief Officer 
Responsible for the report: 

Andy Kerr 
Dave Atkinson 
James Gilchrist 
Tracey Carter 
Helene Vergereau 
 
Specialist Officers: 
Janie Berry 
Heidi Lehane 
Gareth Wilce 
Patrick Looker 
 

Neil Ferris, Corporate Director of 
Place 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 14.10.21 

 

Wards Affected: All  

For further information please contact the authors of the report 
 

Background Reports 
As noted in the Summary a significant amount of analysis is being 
undertaken in respect of the Consultations that have taken place over the 
last year this work is incomplete but will form background papers for the 
Executive reports. 
 
Consultation: Annexes 
 
Annex 1 – Parking Mitigation Measures 
Annex 2 – Forward Plan Entries 
Annex 3 – York Bid – Summer Recovery 
Annex 4 – Existing Extend of Footstreets 
Annex 5 – Footstreets map showing blue badge exemption locations 
Annex 6 – Current Proposals for Footstreets protected from Terrorism 
Annex 7 – Extended terrorism protected footstreets 
 
 
Glossary of Abbreviations used in the report:  

Page 27



 
CYC City of York Council 
HVM Hostile Vehicle Mitigation 

 

 

Page 28



Annex 1 

 Request to SoS will require further CYC decision to implement extension if facility to extend agreed by SoS 

Annex 1 City Centre Changes/Mitigations  

      

Location Existing 
TRO 

Change to TTRO Still in 
place/removed 

Further Information Effect on Blue 
Badge Holders 

Footstreet Area 10:30-
17:00 

Time changed to 
10:30 – 20:00; 
waivers issued 
for Market traders 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021 

Request Submitted 
to SoS for extension 
to TTRO until Sept 
2022 

 

Revision to 
Footstreet Area 
(Blake Street, 
Goodramgate 
routes) 

Disabled 
Access 
Exemption 

Disabled Access 
Exemption 
removed 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021 

Request Submitted 
to SoS for extension 
to TTRO until Sept 
2022 

Removes access to 
the pedestrian area 

Goodramgate – 
Monk Bar to 
Deangate 

No 
Access 
Restriction 

Access Only 
10:30-20:00 

Removed    

Goodramgate – 
Monk Bar to 
Deangate 

Loading 
Ban - 8.00 
and 9.15 
and 
between 
16.00 and 
18.00 
Monday to 
Saturday 

Loading Ban 
Changed to 10:30 
-20:00 

Removed, TTRO 
Revert to original 
loading ban 

  

P
age 29



Annex 1 

 Request to SoS will require further CYC decision to implement extension if facility to extend agreed by SoS 

      

Location Existing 
TRO 

Change to TTRO Still in 
place/removed 

Further Information Effect on Blue 
Badge Holders 

Fossgate NW 8/6 
Park P&D 
6/8 
overnight 

Loading Ban 
10:30 -20:00 
(Loading bays 
provided) 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021  

Request Submitted 
to SoS for extension 
to TTRO until Sept 
2022 

Removes ability to 
park on ‘No Waiting’ 
restrictions, whilst 
accessing properties 
on Fossgate 

Fossgate Access 
Only 
08:00-
17:00 

Access Only 
changed to 10:30 
– 20:00 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021 

Request Submitted 
to SoS for extension 
to TTRO until Sept 
2022 

 

Castlegate Disabled 
Access 
Exemption 

Disabled Access 
Exemption 
removed 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021   

Request Submitted 
to SoS for extension 
to TTRO until Sept 
2022 

Removes access to 
Castlegate 

Castlegate Footstreet 
between 
10:30-
17:00 

Time changed to 
10:30 – 20:00. 
Two way at 
Clifford’s Tower 
end 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec  
2021 

Request Submitted 
to SoS for extension 
to TTRO until Sept 
2022 

 

Coppergate Bus Lane One Way 
Restriction. Right 
Turn Cycle ban 
removed. 
Counter flow 
Cycle Lane 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021 

Develop layout 
options and 
consultation  
potential permanent 
installation and 
request Submitted to 

 

P
age 30



Annex 1 

 Request to SoS will require further CYC decision to implement extension if facility to extend agreed by SoS 

      

Location Existing 
TRO 

Change to TTRO Still in 
place/removed 

Further Information Effect on Blue 
Badge Holders 

SoS for extension to 
TTRO until Sept 
2022 change to TRO  

Duncombe 
Place  

No 
Waiting 24 
Mon-Sat & 
NW 11/6 
Sun 

Loading and 
Disabled Parking 
Bay 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021 

Linked to 
consultation on 
potential permanent 
change to TRO 
removing the Blue 
Badge Holder 
exemption for the 
Extension to Core 
Footstreet Area 
between 10.30 – 
17.00 

Provides additional 
parking facility near 
the pedestrian area 

St. Saviourgate No 
Waiting 
8/6 
Except 
Sun 

Loading and 
Disabled Parking 
Bay 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021 

Linked to 
consultation on 
potential permanent 
change to TRO 
removing the Blue 
Badge Holder 
exemption for the 
Extension to Core 

Provides additional 
parking facility near 
the pedestrian area 

Dundas Street  No 
Waiting 
24/7 

Loading and 
Disabled Parking 
Bay 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021 

Provides additional 
parking facility near 
the pedestrian area 

P
age 31



Annex 1 

 Request to SoS will require further CYC decision to implement extension if facility to extend agreed by SoS 

      

Location Existing 
TRO 

Change to TTRO Still in 
place/removed 

Further Information Effect on Blue 
Badge Holders 

Carmelite Street No 
Waiting 
24/7 

Loading and 
Disabled Parking 
Bay 

In place Extend 
TTRO to 15 Dec 
2021   

Footstreet Area 
between 10.30 – 
17.00 

Provides additional 
parking facility near 
the pedestrian area 

Additional 40 
Blue Badge 
parking bays in 
Monk Bar Car 
Park 

  Additional bays In 
place but number 
of bays reduced 

 Increase in parking 
bays in CYC car 
parks 

Taxi service 
from Monk Bar 
Car to edge of 
pedestrian area 
(St Andrewgate 
or Duncombe 
Place) 

  Removed   

Additional Blue 
Badge parking 
bays in 
Bootham Row 
car park  

  In place  Increase in parking 
bays in CYC car 
parks 

Installation of 
additional 
dropped kerbs 
in Church 

  To be installed  Increases the 
accessibility of the 
footpaths/shops and 

P
age 32



Annex 1 

 Request to SoS will require further CYC decision to implement extension if facility to extend agreed by SoS 

      

Location Existing 
TRO 

Change to TTRO Still in 
place/removed 

Further Information Effect on Blue 
Badge Holders 

Street, 
Fossgate, 
Goodramgate 
and High 
Petergate 

businesses in the 
pedestrian area. 

      
 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
    
 
 

Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan 
 

Please note – every section on this form must be completed 
 

Please 
 tick 

 

 Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 
 Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  

£500,000 or above  

 Executive Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Executive Member Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  
£500,000 or above 

 
Meeting Executive 

 
Meeting Date 18th November 2021 

 
Title of Report Dial & Ride: Funding and delivery arrangements 

 
 
Report Writer / 
Contact Details 

Sam Fryers  
01904 551434 
 

 
Description i.e. 
purpose of report:  
The report details the options for delivery arrangements for the Dial & Ride  
Service including a grant funding model for York Wheels. Depending on the 
decisions made about how the service is delivered there is a further decision  
required about replacement of two life-expired Dial & Ride minibuses. 
 

 

Annex 2

Page 35



The Executive/ Executive Member will be asked to 
Delegate to Corporate Director of Place authority to enter into a grant funding 
model with York Wheels for the Dial & Ride Service. 

Authorise the replacement of two minibuses in compliance with current council 
policies using existing Capital Programme allocations. 

Authorise the Corporate Director of Place authority to open discussions with 
York Wheels about how they maybe able to support improved disabled access 
to the City Centre. 

 

 
 

Has the Equality Impact Assessment been  
Initiated?  
Please note this must have been fully completed by the time the  
final paper is submitted for the relevant Executive /  Executive  
Member Decision Session meeting 

To be undertaken 

 
 

Issue relevant to the remit of the following Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 Health Overview &  

Scrutiny Committee 
  Learning and Culture  

Overview & Scrutiny  
Committee 

   

 
Indicate all wards affected: 
 All wards   Guildhall   Osbaldwick & 

Derwent 
 Acomb  Haxby &  

Wigginton 
 Rawcliffe &  

Clifton Without 
 Bishopthorpe  Heworth  Rural West York 

 Clifton  Heworth Without  Strensall 

 Copmanthorpe  Holgate  Westfield 

 Dringhouses &  
Woodthorpe 

 Hull Road  Wheldrake 

 Fishergate  Huntington &  
New Earswick 

  

 Fulford & 
Heslington 

  Micklegate    

 
 
 

Page 36



Lead Member: 
 
Cllr D’Agorne 

Consultation process: 
Officers have consulted with York Wheels in the preparation of this paper. 

Consultees: 
York Wheels trustees. 

 
 
Background documents (If listing background documents, please also send these along with this  
form so that they can be uploaded onto Modgov): 
 
 

 
Any other relevant information: 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
 
In order to comply with ‘Schedule 12A - Access to Information Regulations: Exempt Information’ 
which came into force on 10 September 2012, you must state if this report is likely to contain 
exempt information and state why.   

 
Is this report likely to contain exempt information?   
 
 

 
Extract from Constitution - Access to Information Protocol  
Schedule of Exempt Information or Documents Categories  

 
Paragraph 1  
Information relating to any individual.  

Paragraph 2  
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individua   

Paragraph 3  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any p  
person (including the authority holding that information)  
Paragraph 4  
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated negotiations, in connection with any labour relat  
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown  
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  

Paragraph 5  
Information in respect of which a claim  

Please 
tick 

 

 This report will not contain any exempt information. 

 1. Information relating to any individual. 

 2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

 3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person  
(including the authority holding that information). 

 4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated  
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising  
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders  
under, the authority. 

 5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal proceedings. 

 6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes: 
(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are  

imposed on a person; or 
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 

 7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the  
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 

Page 38



to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal  
proceedings.  

 
Paragraph 6 

 
Information which reveals that the 
authority proposes –  
(i) to give under any enactment a notice  
under or by virtue of which requirements  
are imposed on a person; or;  
(ii) to make an order or direction under  
any enactment  

 
Paragraph 7 

 
Information relating to an action taken or to 
be taken in connection with the prevention, 
 investigation or prosecution of crime  
 

Page 39



 
    
 
 

Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan 
 

Please note – every section on this form must be completed 
 

Please 
 tick 

 

X Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 

 Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  
£500,000 or above  

 Executive Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Executive Member Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  
£500,000 or above 

 
Meeting Executive 

 
Meeting Date 18 November 

 
Title of Report  

My City Centre vision 
 
Report Writer / 
Contact Details 

Andy Kerr x4153 
 

 
Description i.e. 
purpose of report: 
 
The report will set out the vision for the future of York city centre that has been developed 
through public and stakeholder engagement as part of the My City Centre project.   

 

Page 40



The Executive/ Executive Member will be asked to 
 
To approve the My City Centre vision and commission a joint stakeholder and partner action 
plan to deliver the vision.  
 

 
Has the Equality Impact Assessment been  
Initiated?  
Please note this must have been fully completed by the time the  
final paper is submitted for the relevant Executive /  Executive  
Member Decision Session meeting 

Yes/No 
 
No 

 
 

Issue relevant to the remit of the following Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 Health Overview &  

Scrutiny Committee 
  Learning and Culture  

Overview & Scrutiny  
Committee 

   

 
Indicate all wards affected: 
X All wards   Guildhall   Osbaldwick & 

Derwent 
 Acomb  Haxby &  

Wigginton 
 Rawcliffe &  

Clifton Without 
 Bishopthorpe  Heworth  Rural West York 

 Clifton  Heworth Without  Strensall 

 Copmanthorpe  Holgate  Westfield 

 Dringhouses &  
Woodthorpe 

 Hull Road  Wheldrake 

 Fishergate  Huntington &  
New Earswick 

  

 Fulford & 
Heslington 

  Micklegate    

 
 
 

Page 41



Lead Member: 
 
Executive Member for Economy and Strategic Planning 

Consultation process: 
 
The vision has been formed and refined through extensive public and stakeholder engagement and overseen 
and endorsed by the My City Centre Steering Group  

Consultees: 
 
Public, city centre stakeholders and My City Centre Steering Group 

 
 
Background documents (If listing background documents, please also send these along with this  
form so that they can be uploaded onto Modgov): 
 
Executive Member decision session – April 2021 – approval of the My City Centre approach 
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=63074&Opt=3 
 

 
Any other relevant information: 
 
 
 

Page 42

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=63074&Opt=3


 
 
In order to comply with ‘Schedule 12A - Access to Information Regulations: Exempt Information’ 
which came into force on 10 September 2012, you must state if this report is likely to contain 
exempt information and state why.   

 
Is this report likely to contain exempt information?   
 
 

 
Extract from Constitution - Access to Information Protocol  
Schedule of Exempt Information or Documents Categories  

 
Paragraph 1  
Information relating to any individual.  

Paragraph 2  
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individua   

Paragraph 3  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any p  
person (including the authority holding that information)  
Paragraph 4  
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated negotiations, in connection with any labour relat  
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown  
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  

Paragraph 5  
Information in respect of which a claim  

Please 
tick 

 

X This report will not contain any exempt information. 

 1. Information relating to any individual. 

 2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

 3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person  
(including the authority holding that information). 

 4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated  
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising  
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders  
under, the authority. 

 5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal proceedings. 

 6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes: 
(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are  

imposed on a person; or 
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 

 7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the  
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 

Page 43



to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal  
proceedings.  

 
Paragraph 6 

 
Information which reveals that the 
authority proposes –  
(i) to give under any enactment a notice  
under or by virtue of which requirements  
are imposed on a person; or;  
(ii) to make an order or direction under  
any enactment  

 
Paragraph 7 

 
Information relating to an action taken or to 
be taken in connection with the prevention, 
 investigation or prosecution of crime  
 

Page 44



 
    
 
 

Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan 
 

Please note – every section on this form must be completed 
 

Please 
 tick 

 

X Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 

 Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  
£500,000 or above  

 Executive Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Executive Member Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  
£500,000 or above 

 
Meeting Executive 

 
Meeting Date 18 November 2021 

 
Title of Report  

Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car Parking 
 
Report Writer / 
Contact Details 

Andy Kerr x 4153 
 

 
Description i.e. 
purpose of report: 
 
Report the outcomes of the Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car 
Parking that were commissioned by the Executive in November 2020. 

 

Page 45



The Executive/ Executive Member will be asked to 
 
Approve the strategic reviews and the recommendations to deliver the outcomes relating to 
city centre access and council car parking; and to decide whether to proceed with the 
paused procurement of a contractor to build the new St George’s Field multi-storey car park 
based on the outcomes of the parking review.  
 

 
Has the Equality Impact Assessment been  
Initiated?  
Please note this must have been fully completed by the time the  
final paper is submitted for the relevant Executive /  Executive  
Member Decision Session meeting 

Yes/No 
 
Yes 

 
 

Issue relevant to the remit of the following Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 Health Overview &  

Scrutiny Committee 
  Learning and Culture  

Overview & Scrutiny  
Committee 

   

 
Indicate all wards affected: 
X All wards   Guildhall   Osbaldwick & 

Derwent 
 Acomb  Haxby &  

Wigginton 
 Rawcliffe &  

Clifton Without 
 Bishopthorpe  Heworth  Rural West York 

 Clifton  Heworth Without  Strensall 

 Copmanthorpe  Holgate  Westfield 

 Dringhouses &  
Woodthorpe 

 Hull Road  Wheldrake 

 Fishergate  Huntington &  
New Earswick 

  

 Fulford & 
Heslington 

  Micklegate    

 
 
 

Page 46



Lead Member: 
 
Executive Member for Transport 

Consultation process: 
 
The strategic review of city centre access is the product of extensive consultation with the public and 
stakeholders, including focused engagement with disabled people, cyclists, businesses, and delivery 
couriers. 

Consultees: 
 
Disabled advocacy and representative groups, cycling advocacy groups, city centre businesses and 
stakeholders, cycle and delivery couriers, Human Rights and Equalities Board, taxi operators, shopmobility 
service, and open public engagement. 

 
 
Background documents (If listing background documents, please also send these along with this  
form so that they can be uploaded onto Modgov): 
 
Executive Member decision session approving scope of the review – April 2021 
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=62964&Opt=1 
 
Executive meeting that commissioned the review – November 2020 
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=61098&Opt=1 
 

 
Any other relevant information: 
 
 
 

Page 47

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=62964&Opt=1
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=61098&Opt=1


 
 
In order to comply with ‘Schedule 12A - Access to Information Regulations: Exempt Information’ 
which came into force on 10 September 2012, you must state if this report is likely to contain 
exempt information and state why.   

 
Is this report likely to contain exempt information?   
 
 

 
Extract from Constitution - Access to Information Protocol  
Schedule of Exempt Information or Documents Categories  

 
Paragraph 1  
Information relating to any individual.  

Paragraph 2  
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individua   

Paragraph 3  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any p  
person (including the authority holding that information)  
Paragraph 4  
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated negotiations, in connection with any labour relat  
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown  
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  

Paragraph 5  
Information in respect of which a claim  

Please 
tick 

 

X This report will not contain any exempt information. 

 1. Information relating to any individual. 

 2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

 3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person  
(including the authority holding that information). 

 4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated  
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising  
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders  
under, the authority. 

 5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal proceedings. 

 6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes: 
(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are  

imposed on a person; or 
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 

 7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the  
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 

Page 48



to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal  
proceedings.  

 
Paragraph 6 

 
Information which reveals that the 
authority proposes –  
(i) to give under any enactment a notice  
under or by virtue of which requirements  
are imposed on a person; or;  
(ii) to make an order or direction under  
any enactment  

 
Paragraph 7 

 
Information relating to an action taken or to 
be taken in connection with the prevention, 
 investigation or prosecution of crime  
 

Page 49



 
    
 
 

Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan 
 

Please note – every section on this form must be completed 
 

Please 
 tick 

 

X Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 

 Executive Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  
£500,000 or above  

 Executive Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Executive Member Decision - of ‘Normal’ importance 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision with significant effects on communities 

 Officer Decision - a ‘Key Issue’ - decision leading to savings or expenditure of  
£500,000 or above 

 
Meeting Executive 

 
Meeting Date 18 November 2021 

 
Title of Report Consideration of changes to the City Centre Traffic Regulation order 

(Foot streets) 
 
Report Writer / 
Contact Details 

Dave Atkinson x3481 
 

 
Description i.e. 
purpose of report: 
 
This report considers the current temporary arrangements for the City Centre footstreets 
introduced as part of One Year Covid Transport and Place Strategy. It will set out the 
outcomes of the statutory consultation on amending the future Traffic Regulation Order 
(TRO) of the foot streets. The report will consider mitigation of impacts should Executive 
determine to amend the future TRO. In addition to the above the report will give the context 
for this decision with the results of the wider consultations with residents businesses and 

Page 50



stakeholders, the risks of pedestrian and vehicle conflict, counter terrorism measures and 
the duty to protect, delivering wider city strategies and protecting the economy, and duties 
under equalities legislation.  

 
The Executive/ Executive Member will be asked to 
 
To make a decision on the future TRO arrangements for the City Centre 

 
Has the Equality Impact Assessment been  
Initiated?  
Please note this must have been fully completed by the time the  
final paper is submitted for the relevant Executive /  Executive  
Member Decision Session meeting 

Yes/No 
 
Yes 

 
 

Issue relevant to the remit of the following Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 Health Overview &  

Scrutiny Committee 
  Learning and Culture  

Overview & Scrutiny  
Committee 

   

 
Indicate all wards affected: 
X All wards   Guildhall   Osbaldwick & 

Derwent 
 Acomb  Haxby &  

Wigginton 
 Rawcliffe &  

Clifton Without 
 Bishopthorpe  Heworth  Rural West York 

 Clifton  Heworth Without  Strensall 

 Copmanthorpe  Holgate  Westfield 

 Dringhouses &  
Woodthorpe 

 Hull Road  Wheldrake 

 Fishergate  Huntington &  
New Earswick 

  

 Fulford & 
Heslington 

  Micklegate    

 
 
 

Page 51



Lead Member: 
 
Executive Member for Transport 

Consultation process: 
 
The issues relation to city centre access have been considered through extensive consultation with the public 
and stakeholders, including focused engagement with disabled people, cyclists, businesses, and delivery 
couriers. To guide this decision a statutory consultation has also been carried out as required if making any 
permanent changes to Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO). 

Consultees: 
 
Disabled advocacy and representative groups, cycling advocacy groups, city centre businesses and 
stakeholders, cycle and delivery couriers, Human Rights and Equalities Board, taxi operators, shopmobility 
service, and open public engagement. 

 
 
Background documents (If listing background documents, please also send these along with this  
form so that they can be uploaded onto Modgov): 
 
Executive Member decision that formally commenced the statutory consultation on the proposed  
permanent changes to the footstreets 
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=63427&Opt=1 
 
Executive meeting that considered the permanent changes to the footstreets and delegated the 
statutory consultation to the Executive Member for Transport – November 2020 
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=61098&Opt=1 
 

 
Any other relevant information: 
 
 
 

Page 52

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=63427&Opt=1
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgDecisionDetails.aspx?IId=61098&Opt=1


 
 
In order to comply with ‘Schedule 12A - Access to Information Regulations: Exempt Information’ 
which came into force on 10 September 2012, you must state if this report is likely to contain 
exempt information and state why.   

 
Is this report likely to contain exempt information?   
 
 

 
Extract from Constitution - Access to Information Protocol  
Schedule of Exempt Information or Documents Categories  

 
Paragraph 1  
Information relating to any individual.  

Paragraph 2  
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individua   

Paragraph 3  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any p  
person (including the authority holding that information)  
Paragraph 4  
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated negotiations, in connection with any labour relat  
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown  
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  

Paragraph 5  
Information in respect of which a claim  

Please 
tick 

 

X This report will not contain any exempt information. 

 1. Information relating to any individual. 

 2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

 3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person  
(including the authority holding that information). 

 4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated  
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising  
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders  
under, the authority. 

 5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal proceedings. 

 6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes: 
(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are  

imposed on a person; or 
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 

 7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the  
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 

Page 53



to legal professional privilege could be  
maintained in legal  
proceedings.  

 
Paragraph 6 

 
Information which reveals that the 
authority proposes –  
(i) to give under any enactment a notice  
under or by virtue of which requirements  
are imposed on a person; or;  
(ii) to make an order or direction under  
any enactment  

 
Paragraph 7 

 
Information relating to an action taken or to 
be taken in connection with the prevention, 
 investigation or prosecution of crime  
 

Page 54



Monday 11th Oct 2021

York’s Summer 
Recovery

Annex 3

P
age 55



OVERVIEW

• This is a summary report, looking at how York’s city centre economy has 
performed this summer (with focus on school holidays going into Sept).

• The report also looks at how highstreets are performing in a national context 
(H1 2021) and places York within that context.

• The report uses several sources of information including Springboard, Local 
Data Company and Movement Insights.

• The report was compiled by the York BID, in line with its partner working with 
CYC in procuring and using performance data.

P
age 56



Footfall - York

P
age 57



August 2021 Footfall compared to UK

AUGUST

• NOTE! - Footfall in York for 2021, still overall 38% down on 2019 (start of 2021 saw lockdowns that lasted 
three months)

P
age 58



APRIL – VISITOR ORIGIN

60% from York, Harrogate, Selby or Hambleton

P
age 59



AUG/ SEP – VISITOR ORIGIN

32% from York, Harrogate, Selby or East Riding

P
age 60



AUG / SEP – VISITOR ORIGIN

57% (top 20 of all 
visitors) travel from a 
circa 2 hour radius. 

Day tripper market 
has been strong  

P
age 61



Food & Drink Festival end of September 
gave city a real boost

Quarter 2 Quarter 1

P
age 62



York benefits from attracting high spenders
P

age 63



Spend Recovery

Quarter 2 (Apr – Jun) Quarter 1 (Jan – Feb)

• NOTE! – Quarter 3 (Jul – Sep) data not available yet

P
age 64



UK HIGHSTREET 
RECOVERY

P
age 65



UK – STORE OPENINGS & CLOSURES

4,000 net loss 
in H1 2021, 
compared to 
8,000 net loss 
H1 2020

P
age 66



VACANCIES – HIGH ST SHOWING RESILIENCE !

Shopping centres feeling the brunt, with big chains such as Debenhams, Frankie and 
Benny’s etc leaving large holes.

P
age 67



NOTE! - York’s Vacancy rate circa 9-11% - so compares well to national figures 

UK VACANCY RATES BY REGION
P

age 68



UK NET OPENINGS - INDIE’S DRIVING GROWTH –

FIRST GROWTH IN INDIE’S SINCE 2017!

Bodes well for York with strong Indie scene!

P
age 69



UK SECTORS HIT HARD DURING H1 2021

P
age 70



UK SECTORS THAT HAVE SEEN GROWTH H1 2021
P

age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



16.2m

El Sub Sta

W
orks

ST MARTIN'S LANE

FETTER LANE

17
18

20

21

TRINITY LANE

9.4m

SKELDERGATE

QUEEN'S STAITH ROAD

62

KING'S STAITH

QUEEN'S STAITH

Bollards 7.3m

Cumberland

House

PH

7.6m

7

11

15

2
1 LOWER FRIARGATE

CLI FFO
RD S TREET

CUMBERLAND STREET

Museum

Law Courts
(Magistrates)

Police
Station

Friends'
Meeting
House

12.5m

11.6m

BM 12.04m

BM 12.54m

4

2

7

12

14

16

15

19

23

TCBs

LB

TOWER STREET

Masonic
Hall

Hotel

Fairfax
House

Multistorey

Park

PC

13.1m

BM
13.50m

Car Park

1

26

28
28

28

Castle W
alk

29

31

HUDSO
N STREET

GEO
RG

E

PH

Church

11.6m

1115212329
3135

33

3741

1
3

25

22

MICKLEGATE

BRIDGE STREET

9.8m

12.5m

Sand
Sand

13 15
14

16
17

1

5
7

689

1
2

3
4

1

KING STREET

CHURCH LANE

BM
13.43m

BM 8.63m

Ouse Bridge

PH

PH

1

1

3 to 7

9 to 11

2
6

4 8

14

2

4

12

14

LOW
OUSEGATE

FR
IARGATE

14.0m

14.0m

BM 14.61m

Bank
PH

PH

Government
Office
(DHSS)

14.3m

15 2

4

2
6

10

5
3

1
3 11

5

3a

1

2

6

8

29

28

1

3

5

7

1

11

13

4

NESSGATE

CASTLEGATE

Coppergate W
alk

Multistorey Car
Park

St Mary's
Heritage Centre

Gloucester
House

PH

2

4

3

14

12

6

2

4

1

5

3

7

11

15
 to

 1
7

1to6

6a

12

20

1

22

St Mary's
Square

COPPERGATE

14

TA
NNER

ROW

All Saints' Lane

PH

All Saints'

Church

17

7a

7

1

35
 to

 39

33

31

1
2

18

1917

20
16

15

2221

2625

PH

8.8m

FB

Hotel

River Ouse

NORTH
STREET

14.0m

Bank

PH

Bank

Posts

44

52

4

6

16

12

1
24

22

20
18

12 14
16

108
6

4

2

43

41

33

31

29

27
25

5

PH

18

11

13

1

15

17

5

5

6
7

8

9

11

27
26

25
24

22
21

20
19 18

17

13a

10

9

8

7

15

BM 15.04m

14.0m

14.6m

PICCADILLY

PA
VE

MEN
T

BankBank

PH

PC

1 t
o 3

4

21

22

26

30 28
32

2

4

16

20

13

11

9

7

3

2

10

12

14

16

18 to 22

1

46

47

45
44

9

All Saints'

Church

PH

11

3

5

9.4m

PH

W
ELLINGTON

ROW

St Martin's
Church

Guild Hall

Pond

9
11

13

17

14

19

13.4m

Bank
BM

 13.97m

Judge's C
ourt

ROMAN WALL

(course of)

23

36

32

30
28

26

20

21
19

13 to 17

10

8

4

1

16

20

3

18
16

38to42

JU
BBERGATE

SILVER STREET

PARLIAMENT STREET

Hall
PC

ST SAMPSON'S
SQUARE

2

1

1

9
11

13
1715

21

20

16
14

12 10
8

4

21

20
20

18

17
16

15

14

23

11
 to

 13

37 to 39

36
35

32

34

33

7

6

28
25

26
27

22

15

13

6

24

Bank

LITTLE SHAMBLES

SHAM
BLES

NEWGATE

Hall

Newgate
Market

15
14

 13

12

47

43

2

41
 4

2
40

37
35

31

27

23

17
15

13

12a

12
11

10

1
3

12

7 23
22

1

MUS
EU

M S
TR

EE
T

LENDAL

PH

Municipal
Offices

Ea
st 

Lo
dg

e

Sl ipway

Boat Hire Yard

14.3m

15

2

8
4

12 10

16
14

17

7

14.6m

14.3m

Hotel

Bank

Bank

Mansion
House

TCBs

BLAKE
STREET

23

25

2

16
18

5

3

1

23

11

18

22

26

5

8

2
2

4

8 6

STO
NEG

ATE

Subway

9

7

1

5

HeadPost Office

4

LITTLE STONEGATE

DAVYGATE

PH

WorksSt Helen's
Church

14.9m

7

5b

5.5

3

11

10

8

4

7
5

157

9

13

15

17 to 21

4

6 to 14

17

2

BACK SWINEGATE

SWINEGATE

CHURCH STREET

Elim
Church

PH

St Sampson's

Centre

PH

Finkle Street

Post

25

23

28

4 5

61a
1

9

12 1a

1

3

4 t
o 7

29

31

35
a

33

35

39

21

ROMAN
BATH HOUSE

(site of)

LOW PETERGATE GOODR
AM

GAT
E

ST ANDREWGATE

PATRICK POOL

KING'S
SQUARE

COLLIERGATE

KING
'S

CO
URT

PH

PO

PH

LB

TCBs

74

78

84
80

79

83

85 to 89

1

2

31

30
29

28a
28

27

24 to 26

2 1
31

3
5

1

4
5

6

5

3 4

2

18

15 to 17

14a

13
14

12a

12

PumpCourt

16.2m

7

9

11

99

95

93
 91

89

6

Offices

Car

1

Posts

19
23

Theatre

17

St H
ele

n's
 Squ

are

FE
AS

EG
AT

E

Peter Lane

MARKET STREET

NEW STREET

CONEY STREET

SPURRIERGATE

HIGH OUSEGATE

Fn

LB

12

West Court

16 18

26
28

5

18

26

9
3

25
26

78

Ppg
Sta

9

17

2
4
3

5

13

11

9

1

5
7

11

8

2 to 12

14 to 16

22

25

27

19
21

19

5

16 to 20

3

5

7
9

15 17 to 19

40
42
44

19

1 to 5

Lunds 
Court

Ayre
s

Court

13

13

9

3

1 to 15Queens
Court

El Sub Sta

1 to 5

Cinema

1/2

17 to 40

Woodsmill

Quay

1 t
o 1

6

Mill House

El Sub Sta

Hotel

PH

PH

Bank

Gym

Spurriergate

Centre

Museum

Hotel

Constantine

House

Theatre

2 to 20

THREE CRANES LANE

Nether

Hornpot
Lane

Crambeck

Court

1 to 10

1 to 7

PH

Sloping Masonry

Merchant
Exchange

1 to 23

TheCourtyard

PH

20
Post

Centurion Square

1 to 24

Block E

25 to 50

51 to 80

81 to 117

11
8 t

o 1
44

1 to 24

Popeshead Court

1

2

3

1
3

1 to 14

Spurriergate

House

El Sub Sta

SM

ROMAN WALL

Museum Gardens

The
Lodge

LENDAL

MUSEUM STREET

(remains of)

St Leonard's
Hospital

Library

16.2m

BM 14.82m

14.6m ROMAN WALL

7

5

9

13

3
5

4

2

DW

BLAKE STREET

PH

Assembly Rooms

16
14

10
8

6

1

8

1
3

5

13
17

15
21

19

1 BM 16.80m

3

Hotel9 10

18

26

28
32

38

42

54
56

58

60

35

40

30

9

13

11 1 2

15

21

25

1

3

2

35

35a

37

Posts

BM 15.62m

14
.9m

El Sub Sta

PH

Hall

STONEGATE

LITTLE STONEGATE

23

Hotel

Surgery

GR
AP

E 
LA

NE

LOW
 PETERGATE

16.5m

1

21

13

9
7

3

1

53

57
55

49
51

47
4541

4337
39

51

49

87

83

75

65

59
 to

 63

42

52

62

BM 16.90m 15
.8

m

51

65
71

7780 78

64
54

50

52

70 PH

ROMAN W
ALL

(co
urs

e o
f)

Mins
ter

Son
g S

ch
oo

l
Holy

 Tr
init

y
Chu

rch

PH

68

G
O

O
DR

AM
G

AT
E

BM
 1

5.
92

m

ST L EO
NARD'S PL ACE

The

King's
 M

an
or

9

5

M
unicipal

Offices

16.5m

16.5m

DUNCOMBE PLACE

LB

TCB

21

17

19

De Grey Rooms

De Grey House

Rectory

Hotel

Theatre
Royal

Red House

El Sub S ta

PH

Ch
ur

ch
Ca

th
o l

ic
St

 W
ilfr

id
's

The

BM
17.00m

BM 17.41m

15.8m

BM 16.75m

War Memorial

Hotel

Su
rge

ry

Michael-le-Belfry
Church23

1

9

1112

28 32

36

1

HIGH PETERGATE

St

38

2
4

10

10

9

8

Column

BM 15.98m

M
ins

te
r G

at
es

MINSTER YARD

15.5m

St Peter's Cathedral

The Minster

Diocesan
Registry

Path

The Queen's

6

COLLEGE STREET

15.5m

15.8m

DEANGATE

15
.5

m

3 to 7

8 to 11

12

32

30

7

1

34

39
35

29

PH

Works

College Green

York College
for Girls

(Junior School)

6

SD

38
36

16.2m
BM 16.34m

2

Monument

El Sub Sta
LB

TCB

Pond

10

4

4a
5

9

16

2

1

5

3

7

1

1a

3

5

Bootham Bar
on site of

GATEWAY

PC
PH

15.8m

PRECENTOR'S COURT

4

8

ROMAN LEGIONARY FORTRESS
EBVRACVM

BM 16.83m

Purey-Cust
Nursing Home

The Lodge

LB

MINSTER YARD15.2m OGLEFORTHCHAPTER HOUSE STREET 15.2m

4

5

2

10 to 14

4

17

13

Works

St William'sCollege

1

3

TCB

TCBs

71

9to13

4

8

7

6

8to10

5

6

East Court

(Course of)

DW

West Court

Hornbys Passage

46
48

50

52

40

15
 to

 17

Coffee Yard

73

4

6

1

1 to
 4

5

3
4

6

2

No
rm

an
Co

ur
t

8a

2

15

1 to 16

Stonegate Court

1 to 18

Talbot
Court

66a

68

60a

Post

John SavilleCourt

OGLEFORTH
The

Dutch
House

14.9m

Monk
Bar

GOODRAM
GAT

E

PH

BedernHall

Bedern

ST
 A

ND
RE

W
GA

TE

BARTLE GARTH

14.6m

51
 to

 57

49

4341

28
30

5

2

3

20

22

4

24

27

35

2

3

7

18
20

16
14

12

10

25

23
21

19

11 to 17

9

25

15

24

16

9

7

14

1

9

6 1

2

1

2

1

YO
RK

5
3

BM15.78m

Posts

PH

Posts

St Andrew's

St Andrew's
Court

34

47
45

EB
VR

AC
VM

RO
M

AN
 L

EG
IO

NA
RY

 F
O

RT
RE

SS

SPEN

1 to 6

7

GRANARY

COURT

25

19

Turks Head
Court

1

4

Bollans
Court

2

2

1 6
4

108

14

15

6
5

4
3

7
8

9

2

5

ANDREWGATE St Andrew's
Court

TCBs

PHPAVEMENT

Hall

W
HIP-M

A-W
HOP-M

A-GATE

14.6m

COLLIERGATE

Central
Methodist
Church

PH

PH

Lady P
ecke

tt's

Yard

El
Sub Sta

Merchants'

Hall

FOSSGATE

12.2m

Rest Garden

12.2m

Multistorey

Multistorey

PC

Car Park

22

3
2

13
15

39

40

41
42

43

44
 to

 46

47

49
50

53

54
 to

 56

30
28

26

24

11
16

20
19

18
17

1 to 7

1

2

20

4

5

7
8

10
12

13
14

17
18

20 to 23
24

YO
RK

Car Park

Car Park

Posts

TCB

15
16

11
3

1

2

St A
ndr

ew
 Plac

e

42

10

9
8

12

14 to 16

7

17

19

4l

40 37

35

39 38

34

31

5

5 to 14

4

MORREL YARD
1 to 8

1

El Sub Sta

SCALE
Originating Group

DATE
Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY

City of York Council  LA 1000 20818
Telephone: 01904 551550

1:3000

DT98140

PSL

N

S

EW

26/5/2010

FOOTSTREET AREAS
Boundary of Areas

Annex 4

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



®t

®t

®t

®t

®t®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

®t

3

3

3

4

7

9

2

2

30

12

13

ROW

LOW

LANECOURT

NORTH

SQUARE

LENDAL

JU
NI

OR

GEORGE

HUNGATE

ALDWARK

BOOTHAM

NEWGATE

PA
VE

MEN
T

FOSSGATE

DAVYGATE

NESSGATE

SWINEGATE

FE
AS

EG
AT

E

STONEGATE

OGLEFORTH
PICCADILLY

JUBBERGATE

PICCADILLY

CASTLEGATE

GR
AP

E 
LA

NE

HUNT COURT

COPPERGATE

NEW STREET

MICKLEGATE KING STREET

GO
OD

RA
MG

AT
E

COLLIERGATE

SKELDERGATE

FETTER LANE

GOODRAMGATE

MINSTER YARD

CONEY STREET GARDEN PLACE

MINSTER YARD

TH
E S

TO
NE

BO
W

TOWER STREET

TOWER STREET

BARTLE GARTH

MERCHANTGATE

BLAKE STREET

SPURRIERGATE

CHURCH STREET

MUSEUM STREET

ALBION STREET

MUS
EU

M ST
RE

ET

TANNER STREET

LOW PETERGATE

HIGH OUSEGATE

LAMBERT COURT

MARKET STREET

KING'S STAITH

BRIDGE STREET

ALBION STREET

HAMPDEN STREET

PECKITT STREET

MONK BAR COURT

BACK SWINEGATE

COLLEGE STREET

FAIRFAX STREET

QUEEN'S STAITH

Coppergate Walk

CLIFFORD STREET

LITTLE SHAMBLES

BA
RL

EY
CORN

 YA
RD

SOUTH ESPLANADE

LITTLE STONEGATE

PROSPECT TERRACE

ST LEONARDS MEWS

St H
elen

's S
quar

e

BISHOPHILL SENIOR

ST MAURICE'S ROAD

CUMBERLAND STREET

BUCKINGHAM STREET

PRECENTOR'S COURT

PARLIAMENT STREET

ST LEONARD'S PLACE

QUEEN'S STAITH ROAD

CHAPTER HOUSE STREET

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. OS 100020818

York city cente footstreets
Footstreets
Footstreet

Footstreets
Blue badge access temp removed
Fossgate

Disabled parking
Existing
®t Planned
®t Existing
®t Improved

¯

0 125 25062.5 Meters

Annex 5

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



KEY

Priority one area

Location of

temporary bollards

Public space / squareInner Ring RoadOne way streetPermanent road closureBus routeKEYFossgate - Vehicles prohibited exceptfor access Mon - Sat 08:00 - 18:00Pedestrian zone - all vehicles prohibited10:30 - 17:00 except blue badge holdersPedestrian zone - all vehicles prohibited10:30 - 17:00 except green badge holdersPedestrian zone - no vehicular access10:30 - 17:00Priority one areaAccess / egress point (legitimate direction)
Public space / squareInner Ring RoadOne way streetPermanent road closureBus routeKEYFossgate - Vehicles prohibited exceptfor access Mon - Sat 08:00 - 18:00Pedestrian zone - all vehicles prohibited10:30 - 17:00 except blue badge holdersPedestrian zone - all vehicles prohibited10:30 - 17:00 except green badge holdersPedestrian zone - no vehicular access10:30 - 17:00Priority one areaAccess / egress point (legitimate direction)KEYPriority one area

Location oftemporary bollards

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

A2

REV
INITIAL

DATE

AMENDMENT

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\15 - Miscellaneous Schemes\City centre access\Drawings\City centre access tier 1.dwg

CMH

NTS

City Centre Access

Priority one

Annex 6

P
age 77

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Multistorey

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
5to7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Straker's

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Passage

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
13.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
BLACK HORSE PASSAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
10.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
FOSSGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
4l

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
5 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Merchants'

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Church Building

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
St

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
WHIP-MA-WHOP-MA-GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
St Andrew Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
12.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Almshouses

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Shovel

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
GARDEN PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
MORREL YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
54 to 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
ST SAVIOURGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
44 to 46

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Malt

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Foss

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
9.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
HUNGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Telephone Exchange

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Saviourgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Central

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
12.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
St Andrew's

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
Lady Peckett's

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
1to3

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
MERCHANTGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
St Saviour's

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
11.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Lady Hewley's Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
3 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
16.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
85 to 89

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
14 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
41 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
West Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
CHURCH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
(course of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
OUSEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Sand

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
ROMAN WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
24 to 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
St Helen's

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
PATRICK POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
BATH HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
BACK SWINEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
1/2

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
SWINEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
93 91

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
MUSEUM STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
5b

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
NESSGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
CONEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
St Mary's

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
1to6

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
SILVER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
HUDSON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
LITTLE SHAMBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
Post Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
9 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
SHAMBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
15 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
BRIDGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
HIGH OUSEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
NEW STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
9.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
All Saints'

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
8 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
St Helen's Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
6 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
All Saints'

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
37 to 39

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
St Sampson's

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
GEORGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
15 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
Guild Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
Ppg

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
All Saints' Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
LENDAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
10 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
FEASEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Municipal

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
3 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
2 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
JUBBERGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
LITTLE STONEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
NEWGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
Ouse Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
KING'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
9.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
SPURRIERGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
35 to 39

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
8.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
Cinema

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
ROMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
Mansion

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
COLLIERGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
KING'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
PARLIAMENT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
Ayres

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
11 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Lunds Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
12.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
Coppergate Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
ST SAMPSON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
13 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
17 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
Peter Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
LOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
COPPERGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
16 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
WELLINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
DAVYGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
St Martin's

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
MARKET STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
18 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
Kenrick

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
SPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
16.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
(course of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
15.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
15 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
ROMAN WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
8 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
Mill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
Museum

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
THREE CRANES LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
Hornpot

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
Spurriergate

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
Nether

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
66a

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
1 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
Spurriergate

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
Popeshead Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
Foss Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
Merchants

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
Chapel House

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
Ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
19 to 23

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
St Andrew's

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
11 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Merchant

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
4 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
Bailey Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
Swinegate

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
River Ouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
2 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
Swan Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
Rising Bollards

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
Biba House

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
CHURCH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
Stonebow House

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
Roof Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
Newgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
Market

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
Judge's

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
Norman

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
Court Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
English

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Language

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
Yorks

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
Chocolate

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
Story

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
Lendal Cellars

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
The Judges Lodging

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
Rest Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
Franklins

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
TANNER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
Landing Stages

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
Boat Hire Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
Finkle Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
WEIGHBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
SWINERTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
ROSEBERY

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
9.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
WATER END

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Clifton Long

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
9.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
FORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
Clifton Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
Reach

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
LINCOLN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
8.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
LEEMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
Jubilee

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
15.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
ALDBOROUGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
10.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
Timber Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
222

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
BALFOUR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
BRUNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
KINGSLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
VICTORIA COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
REGENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
STEPHENSON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
St Barnabas'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
ST BARNABAS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
CARNOT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
CARLISLE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
11.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
CARLETON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
CINDER LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
KINGSLAND TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
18.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
19.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
Love Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
ALBEMARLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
21.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
16.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
9.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
Chy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
ROMAN BURIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
Sorting Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
York

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
Arch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
9.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
Ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
Marble

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
City Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
YORK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
12.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
GREENCLIFFE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
THE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
Tennis

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
OUSECLIFFE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
GROVE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
78a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
8b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
Boat House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
GOVERNMENT HOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
WESTMINSTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
11.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
7 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
14 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
SYCAMORE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
QUEEN ANNE'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
Earlsborough Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
Landing

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
17 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
NORTH PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
Boat

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
Sloping

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
LONGFIELD TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
Signal Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
Clifton Long Reach

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
SYCAMORE TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
ALMERY TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
7.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
ST JAMES COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
15.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
Cinder Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
Stage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
Landing

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
Stage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
LEEMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
Clifton Long Reach

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
Landing

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
Kensington House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
S Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
1to8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
43 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
Railway Museum

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
North Junction

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
16.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
UPPER ST PAUL'S TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
18.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
51 to 74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
18.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
16.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
National

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
16.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
15.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
Chy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
National

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
20.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
Cinder Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
CLEVELAND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
Railway Museum

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
LEEMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
ST PAULS MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
WILTON RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
18.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
15.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
SCARCROFT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
15.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
EAST MOUNT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
THE MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
21a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
PARK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
Odeon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
BLOSSOM STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
26 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
16.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
SOUTH PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
28 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
Buildings

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
MOSS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
13.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
SHAW'S TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
Institute

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
St Mary's Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
16.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
16.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
ROMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
ST PAULS MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
THE MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
CAMBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
Martyrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
RAILWAY TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
18.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
18.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
HOLGATE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
Winchester

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
MOUNT PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
of the

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
1 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
20.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
16.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
20.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
Love Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
St Catherine's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
LOWTHER TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
Presbytery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
MP 188

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
19.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
Holgate Road Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
16.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
Suffolk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
7 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
OXFORD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
MOUNT EPHRAIM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
Westmorland

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
English

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
BURIAL GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
Mount School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
DRIFFIELD TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
BRIDGE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
DALTON TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
38 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
18.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
Mill Mount

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
ST PAUL'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
WATSON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
16.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
19.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
Holgate Junction

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
Stafford House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
Mount

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
MILL MOUNT COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
MILL MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
Mount

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
Oxford

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
WATSON TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
18.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
St Paul's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
CECILIA PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
HOLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
ST PAUL'S TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
36 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
17.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
(private)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
ROMAN BURIAL GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
Clifton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
St Peter's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
CLIFTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
Burton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
44 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
Sunday

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
1 to 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
Clifton Holme Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
68 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
54 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
to 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
42 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
BISHOPSFIELDS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
15 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
MARTINS COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
14 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
20 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
14 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
PHOENIX BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
2 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
Mount

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
Mount Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
44 to 49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
Martins Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
47 to 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
37 to 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
26 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
HARDISTY MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
57 to 62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
29 to 34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
50 to 55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
1 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
Langton Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
Grasmead House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
16 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
55 to 65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
St Olaves School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
Hardisty Cloisters

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
1 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
BISHOPSFIELDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
Bishopfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
1 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
Cloisters

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
Meridian

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
Masters House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
Centenary House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
Assembly House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
100 to 110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
Stephenson's Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
Flag Staff

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
Helipad

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
15 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
49a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
Trinity House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
St Paul's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
Church of England

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
Voluntary Controlled

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
70a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
Kings

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
Cloisters

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
5b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
39a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
Coach

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
Scarborough

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
York

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
Engineer's Triangle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
Cycle Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
Leeman Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
Nature Reserve

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
Wentworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
Wagon Repair Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
Ouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
River

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
River Ouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
River Ouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
Pp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
11.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
Cinema

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
Esplanade (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
The Esplanade (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
Cinder Lane (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
Railway Walk (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
Cinder Lane (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
The Esplanade (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
1 to 51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
The Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
ST CATHERINES PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
THE MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
Childrens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
Model Passenger Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
Signal Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
Turntable

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
York Brewery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
Sports Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
SPs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
ALDBOROUGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
Signal Box

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
JUBILEE TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
Dorset House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
Stable Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
St Paul's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
Catesby House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
Talbot House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
Church of England

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
ENFIELD CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
Timber Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
Cambridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
Woodville

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
Saint Barnabas

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
Voluntary Controlled

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
Sports Facility

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
Sports Facility

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
Sports Facility

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
Lilac Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
The Glen

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
Clifton Holme

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
8.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
Aug 18

ddthrpi
Typewritten Text
Annex A




T
his page is intentionally left blank



Access point

Access point

Access point

Exit point

Exit point

Fixed closure

Fixed closure

Fixed closure/access

Designed for Phase One

Designed for Phase One
Designed for Phase One

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100020818

York HVM measures
Author: City of York Council

19 Jan 2021Date: 0 0.08 0.16 0.24 0.32 0.4
Km °

1:2,500Scale:

Annex 7
P

age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Human Rights Report on Blue Badge Exclusion in York, October 2021 

York Human Rights City Network 

 

Background  

In June 2020, the footstreet area in central York was extended (temporarily) in terms of surface 
covered to create space for social distancing and for café licences and in terms of time by increasing 
the hours of operation to 8:00 pm. The City of York Council (CYC) made a temporary Traffic Regulation 
Order (TRO), removing the Blue Badge exemption from Blake Street, Lendal, Goodramgate, Church 
Street and Castlegate and making changes to Fossgate. In February 2021, CYC released a statement 
detailing plans to make these changes permanent.  

Several arguments have been put forward for restricting access to the city centre. In addition to the 
pandemic, these now include supporting the local economy, the need for enhanced counter-terrorism 
measures, and environmental benefits. Blue Badge holders have argued that any measures should not 
further restrict their city centre access in a discriminatory manner. Despite various consultations from 
April to June 2021, fundamental differences of opinion and perceptions that evidence from the 
consultations has on occasion been used selectively or inaccurately have caused controversy. The 
issue of access has become highly polarised, with a resulting breakdown in trust between the CYC and 
disabled groups. The Council have delayed their final decision until November 2021 to conduct further 
consultation.  

The Human Rights and Equalities Board (HBEB), a CYC-led body, has asked the York Human Rights City 
Network (YHRCN), a civil society coalition, to provide guidance on how the Council can best respect 
the human rights of all when taking these complex decisions. In a July 2021 statement the YHRCN 
observed that a human rights approach had not been adopted in developing the current plans, and 
that the disproportionate impact of the plans on some of York’s disabled citizens had not been 
adequately considered. 

Relevant human rights and equalities provisions in international and UK law 

Looking at this issue through a human rights lens adds value in three ways.  

First, human rights law makes clear that majority preferences cannot simply override those of 
minority groups, thereby resulting in systemic discrimination against individuals with protected 
characteristics, such as disability.  

At the international level, this core understanding is encapsulated by the UN Convention on the Rights 
of Persons with Disabilities (UNCRPD), a human rights treaty, which the UK agreed to abide by in 2009. 
As a result, the treaty binds national and local authorities, including city councils. Three of the eight 
general principles of the UNCRPD are particularly relevant to the situation in York: 

● Non-discrimination, whereby “disabled people must never be treated less favourably than 
others, excluded from or denied access to services, education, work or social life on the basis 
of their disability.” 

● Accessibility, which requires that “disabled people can access buildings, housing, services, 
information, leisure … on an equal basis to non-disabled people.” 

● Participation and inclusion, requiring that “disabled people’s full and effective participation 
and inclusion in society must be supported.” 

Integrating these principles at the domestic level, the Equality Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 
1998 provide protection to disabled persons’ rights in the UK. 

 

Page 81

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/the-united-nations-convention-on-the-rights-of-persons-with-disabilities-what-does-it-mean-for-you.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/the-united-nations-convention-on-the-rights-of-persons-with-disabilities-what-does-it-mean-for-you.pdf


2 
 

Second, human rights can be used to frame a debate such as this where there are genuine concerns 
on each side of the argument. On the one hand there is the right to non-discriminatory access to the 
city centre of all individuals, including disabled persons; on the other, the right to security (pursued 
through anti-terrorism measures), to a healthy environment, and the desire to support economic 
recovery (the right to a decent standard of living). Any weighing of these human rights claims and 
public interests must take into account the central place of non-discrimination in finding a solution.  

The centrality of equality and non-discrimination is supported by domestic law provisions. Article 8 of 
the Human Rights Act 1998, read in conjunction with Article 14, guarantees the right of disabled 
persons, inter alia, to respect for their private life in a non-discriminatory manner – this includes the 
right to participate in essential economic, social, cultural and leisure activities, to physical and mental 
health and autonomy. Whilst the right can be subject to limitations, these must not be 
disproportionate to the goals pursued.  

Importantly, the Equality Act 2010 places a duty on public authorities to make reasonable adjustments 
in order for disabled persons to be able to exercise their rights. Wherever “a provision, criterion or 
practice ... puts a disabled person at a substantial disadvantage in relation to a relevant matter in 
comparison with persons who are not disabled”, authorities must “take such steps as it is reasonable 
to have to take to avoid the disadvantage.” Such steps are subject to means, or available resources.  

Finally, the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) entailed in the Equality Act 2010 requires authorities 
“to have due regard to the need … to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and … to 
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not share it”. Case law clarifies that public authorities must, for example, have “due 
regard” to the impact on elderly or disabled people when imposing parking restrictions. 

Whilst the duty to have “due regard” is not an obligation of results, the court noted that the level of 
regard required will be very high where a decision may affect large numbers of individuals sharing a 
protected characteristic. Depending on the nature and extent of the impact, effects on even a small 
number of persons may also require a high level of consideration to be given by local authorities.   

For the CYC to comply with the PSED, it should be able to demonstrate that “adequate and accurate 
equality evidence” has been collated, properly understood, and analysed (5.17). Courts have held that 
without evidence of “a structured attempt to focus on the details of equality issues”, a public authority 
is likely to be in difficulty, should the decision face judicial review (para. 61; see also EHRC, 5.37).  

The Equalities Impact Assessments (EIAs) of 9 June 2020 and of 11 November 2020, respectively, fail 
to identify in the Human Rights section the impact on 4.16 Right to respect for private and family life, 
home and correspondence and 4.18 Right not to be subject to discrimination. This omission is in 
contradiction with the previous section of the respective EIAs on Equalities, which do identify a 
negative or a mixed impact in respect to 4.2 Disability and 4.10. Carers. What this means is that the 
data has not been adequately understood and analysed. One cannot divorce the assessment of the 
impact under the Equality Act 2010 from the impact under the Human Rights Act 1998 - rights 
are interdependent and so are impacts on rights.  
 
In the 10 June 2021 EIA a similar approach is taken: "No human rights have been identified as 
impacted". Again, this is contradictory to the impacts identified on disabled persons under the 
Equalities section, specifically on Blue Badge holders. Clearly, their right to a private life taken alone 
and in conjunction with their right to non-discrimination is impacted. Section 6.1, detailing 
recommendations and conclusions of the assessment, fails to engage with the following instruction: 
"Important: If there are any adverse impacts you cannot mitigate, please provide a compelling reason 
in the justification column."  
 
In short, while the CYC has conducted EIAs in relation to city centre access, and Blue Badge access 
specifically, the data gathered has not been properly understood and analysed. 

Page 82

https://www.disabilityrightsuk.org/human-rights-act-1998-hra
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/20
https://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2019/2964.html
https://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2011/448.html
https://oxford-universitypressscholarship-com.libproxy.york.ac.uk/view/10.1093/oso/9780198870876.001.0001/oso-9780198870876-chapter-8#oso-9780198870876-chapter-8-note-1010
https://oxford-universitypressscholarship-com.libproxy.york.ac.uk/view/10.1093/oso/9780198870876.001.0001/oso-9780198870876-chapter-8#oso-9780198870876-chapter-8-note-1010
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england
https://www.bailii.org/cgi-bin/markup.cgi?doc=/ew/cases/EWCA/Civ/2013/1345.html&query=bracking+and+%22public+sector+equality+duty%22&method=boolean
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s144057/Annex%204%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment%20for%20the%20Covid-19%20Economic%20Recovery%20-%20Transport%20and%20Place%20Stra.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s144058/Annex%205%20-%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment%20ongoing%20extension%20of%20the%20city%20centre%20footstreets.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s150551/Annex%20L%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf


3 
 

Third, human rights engender participation of affected individuals and groups in decision-making 
processes and encourages co-production of solutions for situations such as the one in York. 

Technical guidance clarifies that public authorities’ compliance with the PSED cannot be achieved in 
the absence of having a full understanding of the potential equality impacts of their intended actions 
(5.15-5.20). This is particularly relevant at a local level, where proximity can either result in facilitating 
understanding of each other’s needs and the building of jointly satisfactory solutions, or on the 
contrary, entrenching stereotypes and fuelling hate incidents in the city. The co-production of 
reasonable adjustments for accessing York city centre between CYC and disabled persons could 
provide an opportunity for deep listening and represent a learning exercise for the wider York 
community. This may in turn build shared understandings, engender participatory processes, and 
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who 
do not share it – the latter, indeed, represents the third limb of the PSED.  

Experience from other cities 

Chester  

Chester was the first British city to win the coveted European Access City Award in 2017 for its 
commitment to ensuring that the historic city continues to become more accessible for all. Blue Badge 
holders have access to the centre through the use of Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) at 
barriers. This technology reads a car’s number plate and compares it to a list without the need for 
human intervention. Visiting Blue Badge holders apply in advance to be added to the list.  

In addition, wheelchair users have several access points to the city walls and the 13th Century elevated 
walkways. There are seven Changing Places toilets and the Council has committed to creating more 
with any new renovation in the city. All of the city’s public buses are fully accessible. Council policy 
requires all of its licensed taxis to be suitable for wheelchairs. They must also include additional 
features, such as induction loops and colour-contrasted grab handles.  

Dial West Cheshire (DWC) is a Chester-based disabled people’s organisation. It runs a disability rights 
centre, a Shopmobility service and an access group. DWC felt the city winning the European access 
Award showed other councils “the importance of involving disabled people in plans and planning” and 
then listening to what they say. 

The council employs a Senior Access Officer and followed DWC advice to set up a corporate disability 
access forum made up of 16 disability organisations to examine strategic issues, challenge architects 
and developers about access plans and ensure access is central to the conversation. This has given 
disabled people “the opportunity to be heard” and provides a working model of co-production.  

Finally, with the accessible overnight tourism market worth £3bn in England as a whole (and day visits 
bringing that figure up to £12.1bn, according to Visit England), it is clear that there is a strong economic 
argument for investing in accessibility. The “purple pound” generally is worth £212bn a year. 

Bath 

From November 2020 to January 2021 Bath and North East Somerset Council held a public 
consultation on making Bath more secure by creating permanent access restrictions to the city centre. 
The proposed scheme removed disabled parking in the city centre and access for delivery services 
including food, parcels and other goods to properties within the “strengthened zone”.  

Local groups including The Abbey Residents Association (TARA) spoke out against the proposals and 
called for a rethink so taxis would be able to operate freely in the secure zone, Blue Badge holders 
would continue to be able to park or be dropped off, and there would be an easy way to get parcels 
or groceries delivered without a complex bureaucratic process. 

In recognition of the impact on Blue Badges holders and the need for reasonable adjustments, the 
Council commissioned an independent report from Atkins (a design, engineering and project 
management consultancy company) to identify a package of measures to that could address the 

Page 83

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england
https://www.disabilitynewsservice.com/english-city-is-first-in-uk-to-win-european-union-access-award/
http://www.dialwestcheshire.org.uk/
https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2020-11/Bath%20city%20centre%20security%20web%20doc_final.pdf
https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2020-11/Bath%20city%20centre%20security%20web%20doc_final.pdf
https://www.bathecho.co.uk/news/politics/calls-rethink-counter-terror-proposals-city-centre-92815/


4 
 

concerns raised by the disabled community and those with mobility issues. Atkins conducted 
stakeholder interviews to inform their report.  

The Accessibility Study advised that when considering the risks associated with terrorism, there was a 
need to weigh these concerns with the public interest in equitable access. It states:  

“the accumulative result of barriers and hurdles preventing people from gaining feasible 
access to destinations enjoyed by others can significantly affect people’s wellbeing ... if 
quantified, the accumulative effect of ‘slow disasters’ affecting multiple individuals who are 
not within public attention, could outweigh the detrimental effect of ‘rapid disasters’ ... It is 
key that [security] staff know their duty is to literally and metaphorically ‘remove barriers’      
to enable those coming to the city for legitimate reasons to gain access as much as it is to ‘     
place barriers’ and hinder those seeking access for illegitimate reasons.” 

In July 2021 council leader Kevin Guy reassured residents that the Council had taken their feedback 
into account. The new proposed measures allowed Blue Badge holders, their carers and taxis 
transporting them to park on previously excluded streets. Improvements to public toilets, the launch 
of a free electric shuttle bus for Blue Badge holders and older people, street seating, dropped curbs, 
extra Blue Badge parking outside the centre, improvements to Shopmobility, and dedicated cycle 
paths for bikes and e-scooters are also being considered. The new Traffic Regulation Orders are 
currently undergoing public consultation.  

Conclusions and recommendations for York 

Drawing on this review of relevant law and practice, the York Human Rights City Network sets out 
below recommendations for the short term and longer term. It is important that the CYC considers 
the implications of the ‘slow disaster’ of further discriminating against an already disadvantaged 
group, and the implications for trust and public relations in the city, alongside the implications of ‘rapid 
disasters’, such as the threat of terrorist attacks. In the short term: 

1. The CYC should seek to co-produce an accessibility plan to the city centre with Blue Badge 
holders. Current restrictions on Blue Badge access should be lifted and any decisions on city 
centre access placed on hold to allow the process of co-production to take place. This needs 
to go beyond conventional consultation, to include listening to the views of disability groups 
in the context of developing jointly agreed solutions to the current challenges, as well as 
devising procedures to prevent such a situation occurring again in the future.  

In the longer term:  

2. The CYC should appoint an Access Officer to advise it on access issues and ensuring inclusivity 
in decision-making. The Access Officer should also be a liaison person for local disabled citizens 
and groups. This position would be ideal for a qualified Access Auditor with lived experience 
of disability.  

3. The CYC should consider establishing a Disability Access Forum, comprising disability 
organisations. Its role would be to provide strategic advice on access issues, and assess the 
access implications of plans for the city. Both the Access Officer and the Disability Access 
Forum would embed a co-production approach to accessibility for the future.  

4. The failure to properly understand and analyse the data in the Equality Impact Assessments 
illustrates the need for training within the CYC on equalities and human rights. Training for 
the CYC, members of the Disability Access Forum and others could provide an opportunity to 

“foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it”. The development of a new Human Rights and Equalities Impact 
Assessment tool within the CYC provides a good opportunity to provide such training, and 
integrate analysis of equalities and human rights.  

 

Page 84

https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/210518_5204216-3-1_Bath_City_Centre_Accesibility_Study_Final_Issued.pdf

	Agenda
	 
	3 City Centre, Vision, Accessibility and Traffic Regulation
	Scrutiny Report
	Annex 1 - City Centre Changes - Mitigations
	Annex 2 - Forward Plan Entries
	181121 Executive Dial  Ride - Forward Plan Submission
	Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan

	My City Centre Exec forward plan submission (002)
	Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan

	Strategic Review of City Centre Access and Parking forward plan submission_ (003)
	Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan

	Extended footstreet forward plan submission_ (002)
	Submission of an item onto the Forward Plan


	Annex 3 - York BID - York's summer recovery
	Annex 4 - Existing Extent of Footstreets
	Annex 5 - Footstreets map showing blue badge exmpetion locations
	Annex 6 - Current Proposals for Footstreets protected from Terrorism
	Sheets and Views
	Priority one NTS


	Annex 7 - Extended terrorism protected footstreets
	YHRCN Report to HREB on Blue Badge Concerns Final 14.10.2021




